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Vision Statement

Mission Statement

To achieve the highest possible return on investment through a process of continuous 

improvement and while upholding the highest standards of integrity in all operations.

To be a result-oriented and profitable Company by consistently improving in terms of productivity, 

quality, technological expertise, diversity, presentation, reliability and customer acceptance.

To establish the company as a growing concern while ensuring optimum return on investment for 

shareholders.

To be a responsible employer and create an environment where a professional, highly-motivated 

management team can prosper.

To be a good corporate citizen who supports charitable causes and follows environmentally 

friendly policies.

Statement of Ethics and Business Practices

Continuous improvement in total quality performance by achieving high standards in our products 

and providing these to our customers without error, on time and every time. We are dedicated to 

supply the product of highest quality and standards, yet at a reasonable cost for our national and 

international customer's satisfaction. All of our commitments, actions and products must be 

recognized as an expression of quality. We are committed to improve our skills and know-how, 

competency, practical experience and training of employees by implementing quality system. We 

continuously improve the performance of quality standards through practical participation of our 

employees at all levels. Our mission is to meet National and International Standards, Customers' 

Satisfaction and Continuous Improvements in our standards through use of latest methods and 

employees satisfaction. We believe that a complete code of ethics is essential for the maintenance 

of integrity and professionalism in the day-to-day functioning of Dar Es Salaam Textile Mills 

Limited. We always place the Company's interest first through resource management namely 

human, financial and other infra structural facilities and to ensure reasonable return to all the 

shareholders. Conduct business as a responsible and law abiding corporate member of society to 

achieve its legitimate commercial objective and supports unconditionally the Compliance with 

best Practices of Corporate Governance for the betterment of corporate culture. We develop and 

observe cost effective practices in our activities and strive for excellence and quality. We 

encourage initiative and self-realization in employees through meaningful empowerment.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
 
Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Dar Es Salaam Textile Mills Limited 
(the “Company”) will be held on Wednesday, 28th day of October 2020 at 11:00 a.m., however 
due to the current situation caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, shareholders shall be entitled to 
attend the meeting through video link facility managed from the Company’s registered office at 
54-C III Gulberg-III, Lahore, to transact the following business  

  

  
1.  ORDINARY BUSINESS   

  

1.  To confirm the minutes of the last Annual General Meeting held on October 28, 2019. 

    

2.  To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company 

for the year ended June 30, 2020 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors 

thereon.  

    

3.  To appoint auditors of the company and fix their remuneration for the financial year 

2020-21. The Board of Directors have recommended for reappointment of M/s. Rizwan 

& Co, Chartered Accountants as external auditors.  

  

2.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

  

3.  To transact any other ordinary business which may legally be transacted at an Annual 

General Meeting, with the permission of the Chair.  

   

  

By Order of the Board of Directors 
  

  

   

Shahid Amin Chaudry  

Company Secretary  

Lahore  

October 01, 2020  
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NOTES:  

  

1.  In pursuance of SECP’s Circular No. 5 dated March 17, 2020, and Circular No. 10 dated April 

1, 2020, respectively pertaining to Regulatory Relief to dilute impact of Corona Virus 

(COVID 19) for Corporate Sector, the shareholders shall be entitled to attend the 

proceedings of the AGM through online means using a video link facility, Zoom application 

or other electronic means for the safety and well-being of the valued shareholders and the 

general public.  

    

2.  The Shares Transfer Books of Dar Es Salaam Textile Mills Limited (the “Company”) will 

remain closed from October 21, 2020 to October 28, 2020 (both days inclusive). No 

transfers will be accepted for registration during this period. Transfers in good order,  

received at the office of the Company’s Share Registrar namely M/s. Corplink (Pvt) Limited, 

Wing Arcade, 1-K Commercial, Model Town, Lahore, by the close of business on October 

20, 2020 will be treated in time for the purpose of attending the annual general meeting.  

    
3.  The login facility will be opened at 10.45 a.m. on October 28, 2020 enabling the participants 

to join the proceedings which will start at 11.00 a.m. sharp.  

    

4.  Shareholders interested in attending the AGM through electronic means, are requested to 

register themselves by submitting their following particulars at the Company’s designated 

email address before the close of business hours on info@daressalaamtextilemills.com 

October 20, 2020. The link to the zoom application will be sent to the shareholders on the 

email address provided in the below table:  

  

 Name  

Shareholder 

o 
f  

  

CNIC Number 

  

   CDC Account  

No./Folio No.   

Cell Number 

  

  Email Address   

  

5.  Login facility will be shared with the shareholders whose emails addresses provided on 

above table, Shareholders can also provide their comments / suggestions on 

or WhatsApp or SMS on 0300-4010996 for the agenda 

items proposed to be conducted at the AGM in the same manner as it is being discussed 

in the AGM, and later shall be made part of the minutes of the meeting.  

info@daressalaamtextilemills.com 
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6. 

 
A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to 

attend and vote instead of him.  A proxy must be a member of the Company 
 

    
7. 

 
The instrument appointing the proxy and the Power of Attorney or other authority under 

which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be lodged at the Company’s 

registered office i.e. 54-C III, Gulberg III, Lahore, not later than 48 hours
 
before the time of 

the meeting. 
 

    
8.  The Members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNIC to the Company 

/ Share Registrar, are once again reminded to send the same at the earliest directly to 

Company’s Share Registrar, /s. Corplink  (Pvt) Limited, Wing Arcade, 1-K Commercial, 

Model Town, Lahore. Corporate entities are requested to provide their National Tax 

Number (NTN). Please give the folio number with the copy of CNIC / NTN details. Reference 

is also made to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) Notifications 

SRO 779 (I) dated August 18, 2011, and SRO 831 (I) 2012 dated July 05, 2012, which 

mandates that the dividend warrants should bear CNIC number of the registered member 

or the authorized person, except in case of minor(s) and corporate members. In case of 

non-receipt of the copy of a valid CNIC, the Company will not transmit the dividends of 

such shareholders to comply with the said SROs of SECP.  

    

9.  The Government of Pakistan through the Finance Act, 2020 has made certain amendments 

in Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are prescribed 

for deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies. These 

tax rates are as under:  

  

a.  Rate of tax deduction for filer of income tax returns: 15.0%   

b.  Rate of tax deduction for non-filers of income tax return: 30.0%  

    

All the shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax Payers List (ATL) 

provided on the website of FBR, despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make 

sure that their names are entered into ATL before the start of book closure date otherwise 

tax on their cash dividend will be deducted at the rate of  

30% instead of 15%.  
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 A valid Exemption Certificate under Section 159 of the Ordinance is mandatory to claim 
exemption of withholding tax under Clause 47B of Part -IV of Second Schedule to the 
Ordinance. Those who fall in the category mentioned in the above Clause must provide a 
valid Tax Exempti on Certificate to our Shares Registrar; else tax will be deducted on 
dividend amount as per rates prescribed in Section 150 of the Ordinance.  

  

   

10. For shareholders holding their shares jointly as per the clarification issued by the FBR, 
withholding tax  will be determined separately on “Filer / Non-Filer” status of the principal 
shareholder as well as the joint-holder(s) based on their shareholding proportions. 
Therefore, all shareholders who hold shares jointly are required to provide shareholding 
proportions of principal shareholder and joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them 
to the Company’s Share Registrar, Corplink (Pvt) Limited, Wing Arcade, 1 -K Commercial, 
Model Town, Lahore in the writing as follows, otherwise it will be assumed that the shares 
are equally held by the principal shareholder and the joint shareholder(s):  

  

                                                                      Principal Shareholder                          Joint Shareholder  

Folio/CDC   

Account #   
Total Shares   Name and 

CNIC   

 Shareholding   

Proportion  

(No. of 

Shares)  

Name and 

CNIC   

 Shareholding  

Proportion  

(No. of   

Shares )  

  

11.  Shareholders are requested to notify their change of address, Zakat declaration and Tax 

exemption certificate (if any) immediately to the Company’s Share Registrar, Corplink 

(Pvt) Limited, Wing Arcade, 1-K Commercial, Model Town, Lahore. Please further not e that 

Zakat will be deducted from dividends at source at the rate of 2.5% of the paid up value 

of the shares under Zakat and Ushr laws and will be deposited within the prescribed period 

with the relevant authority.  In the event that you would like to cla im an exemption, please 

submit, with your broker/CDC/the Company’s Share Registrar, your Zakat Declaration 

form CZ -50 under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance 1980 and Rule 4 of the Zakat (Deduction 

and Refund) Rules 1981.  
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12.  SECP, through its SRO 470(1)/2016 dated May 31, 2016, has allowed companies to 
circulate their annual accounts to shareholders through CD/DVD/USB at their registered 
addresses. However, any shareholder may request the Company Secretary in writing to 
provide a printed copy of the annual report at their registered address, free of cost  

  

Members are further informed that pursuant to SECP’s S.R.O. 787(1)/2014 dated 

September 8, 2014 regarding electronic transmission of the Company’s Annual Report and 

AGM notice, we have uploaded the request form on the Company’s website - 

www.daressalaamtextilemills.com.  Those members who want to avail this facility are 

requested to submit the duly filled request form to our Share Registrar Corplink (Pvt) 

Limited, Wing Arcade, 1-K Commercial, Model Town, Lahore.  

  

13.  In accordance with the requirements of section 242 of the Companies Act 2017, cash 

dividends shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account 

designated by the entitled shareholders. Shareholders are requested to provide their folio 

number, name, bank account details comprising
 
of bank name, branch name, branch 

code, account number, title of account and IBAN, which they designate for crediting of 

their dividend. A standard form has also been placed on the Company’s website -
 

www.daressalaamtextilemills.com.
 
Please ensure that such details are provided to the 

Company’s Share Registrar Corplink (Pvt) Limited, Wing Arcade, 1 -K Commercial, Model 

Town, Lahore and/or your broker/participant/CDC Investor account services, failing which 

the Company will be unable to process your dividend payment. 
 



13 | Dar es Salaam Textile Mills Limited



14 | Dar es Salaam Textile Mills Limited



15 | Dar es Salaam Textile Mills Limited



16 | Dar es Salaam Textile Mills Limited



I am pleased to present the review for the year ended 30 June 2020 highlighting the Company's 
performance and the role of the Board of Directors in guiding the management to carry out its 
responsibility for the benefit of all its stakeholders.

During the year; the Company remained committed to implement its new business strategy and is 
focusing to improve its liquidity. The focus of the Company's management is to settle the Company's 
liabilities towards lenders and other creditors and to utilize available funds for implementation of 
alternate business plan. I am confident that the Company will be successful in meeting the future 
challenges and targets.

During the year; the Board played an effective role in managing the affairs of the Company in the 
following manner:

I. The Board has ensured that there is adequate representation of non-executive and independent 
directors on the Board and its committees as laid down in the Code and shall ensure to 
implement the requirements of new Code in its true letter and spirit.

II. The Board has ensured that members of the Board and its respective committees possess 
adequate skills, experience and knowledge to manage the affairs of the Company. The Board 
shall ensure that the directors shall be provided with the requisite training to enable them to 
perform their duties in an effective manner to ensure that directors seek certification in 
accordance with the Code;

III. The Board remain updated with respect to achievement of Company's objectives, goals, 
strategies and financial performance through review of reports from management and other 
consultants;

IV. The Board recognizes that well defined corporate governance processes is vital in enhancing 
corporate accountability and is committed to ensure high standards of corporate governance to 
preserve and maintain stakeholder value.

V. During the year, the Board completed evaluation of the Board in line with the requirements of 
the Code. The main focus was on strategic growth, business opportunities risk management, 
and composition of the board. The Board, apart from Board Audit Committee and Board Human 
Resource Committee meetings, normally meets once every quarter to consider and approve 
financial and operating results.

VI. All the significant issues were presented before the Board or its committees to strengthen and 
formalize the corporate decision-making process and particularly all the related party 
transactions executed by the Company were approved by the Board on the recommendations of 

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW
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the Audit Committee;

VII. The Board has ensured that sound system of internal controls are in place;

Being Chairperson of the Board, I will remain firmly committed to ensure that the Company 
complies with all the relevant provisions of the Code and other regulations and ensuring that our 
management team continues to take decision that will create value for you in the short, medium and 
long term.

Lahore
October 01, 2020

Abida Mukhtar
Chief Executive Officer

Faisal Mukhtar
Chairperson, Board of Directors
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The Directors of Dar es Salaam Textile Mills Limited ("the Company") take pleasure in presenting the 30 th Annual 
Report together with your Company’s Annual Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30 th, 2020.

 
Economic Outlook / Business, Risk and Challenges  

 
The Corona virus pandemic drastically disrupted the world’s economy and bought it to a standstill. Never 
before did companies globally face such massive challenges –  volatile stock market, negative oil prices, 
plummeting commodity prices and demand, built up stock, collapsing transportation and default by customers. 
Unfortunately, the Pakistani economy also suffered the brunt of the pandemic across all segments. The overall 
impact of the pandemic resulted in massive layoffs, colossal write-offs in stocks, and closure of businesses 
across various segments. Given such unusual times, it was difficult for the management to close any deal and 
dispose of land, building and machinery to pay down its liabilities.  

Description  June 30, 
2020 
(PKR)  

June 30, 
2019 (PKR)  
(Restated)  

Sale  -  -  
Cost of Sales*  -  -  
Gross Profit/ (Loss)  -  -  
Finance Cost  (5,845)  (24,853)  
Other income  5,345,000  20,379,568  
Administrative Expenses  (12,349,214)  (18,270,397)  
Other operating expenses  (40,180,320)  (7,018,677)  
Changes in Fair Value of Investment Property  93,649  0  
Taxation  (2,640,942)  0  
Loss after taxation  (49,737,672)  (4,934,359 )  

Due to the change in effect of reclassification of non-current assets held for sale, the profit and loss includes an impairment loss of PKR 31 
Million. The detail working of the impairment is available in note 12. 1 

 
Nonetheless, in the last quarter of 2020, after much deliberation, the management of the company decided 
to hold an Extra Ordinary General Meeting on April 20, 2020. The meeting was held to obtain approval from 
shareholders for leasing out the premises. The management believes that until an offer arises from a party 
for its land and building, it is essential  for  it  to  generate income to meet cashflow requirements and reduce
liabilities.  Therefore,  in  the  interim  period the management will lease out its land and building. Moreover, in 
reference to the EOGM held in April 2018, the management is still seeking buyers for the disposal of land and 
building in order to pay down its liabilities and revive the company. These are challenging times, but the
management  is  hopeful  to  dispose  of  land  and  building within shortest possible time and implement business 
plan for revival of the  Company.  

 
Furthermore,  as  illustrated  in  the  Auditors  report, the management made further efforts for removal certain 

reservations of the Auditors and despite the adverse opinion of the Auditor, it is confident that it will ensure 
a positive bottom line in the first quarter of 2021.
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
 

 The Company gives high priority to its social responsibilities and is committed to the highest standards of 
corporate behaviour

 
despite of the fact that it has increased its cost of doing business. The Company believes 

in having shared value and having healthy work place. Since the operations of the Company have been 
suspended for the time being hence much monetary spending on CSR

 
initiatives is not being carried out. The 

Company upon implementation of its alternate business plans aims to continue its CSR initiatives in the areas 
of healthcare, education, environment protection, water and sanitation, child welfare, infrastructure 
development and other social welfare activities.

 

 
Related Party transactions

 

 
All related party transactions during the financial year ended on 30 June 2020 were placed before the Audit 
Committee and the Board for their review and subsequently approved. These transactions were reviewed by 
the Audit Committee and approved by the Board. All these transactions were in line with the transfer pricing 
methods and the policy for related parties approved by the Board.

 

 
Code of Conduct

 

 
The Company strives to enhance corporate governance as one of the most important tasks for its 
management, based on the Company’s basic principle, in order to strengthen the trust of our shareholders, 
customers & society and seek sustainable growth and enhance corporate value. 

 
Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework 

 
The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its state of affairs, the
result of its operations, cash flow and changes in equity. The Company is committed to good corporate 
governance. The financial statements together with notes have been drawn up with in conformity with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2017. International Financial Reporting Standards have been followed in 
preparation of these financial statements and accounting policies have been consistently applied in 
preparation of the financial statements. 

 
Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance 

 
The new Code of Corporate Governance has marked a various change to bring local companies governance in 
line with the global norms. The Company has taken initiatives to implement amendments in the new Code. The 
representation of independent directors has been linked with the restructuring of the Board not later than next 
election of Directors. The remuneration policy for Board of Directors (for Executive, Non-Executive and 
Independent Directors) are being prepared. The Board lays great emphasis on adding and practicing good 
Corporate Governance, with a view to achieve transparency in its operations, so as to boost the confidence of 

important stakeholders. The objective of this policy is to ensure that the Executive & Non-executive directors 
are governed by comprehensive compensation criteria that is based on merit and contributions towards the 
strategic guidance and success of the Company. The Statement of compliance with the Code of Corporate 
Governance is annexed. 
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The Board of Directors  
The Board of Directors is composed of seven members, with statutory representation of different category of
directors, which includes an independent director, non-executive directors and executive directors as required 
by the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017. The Board is responsible for making
strategic decisions with respect to important management matters, including the execution of important 
business activities and other matters as prescribed by law. These decisions are made after deliberating matters 
according to established criteria: assessing risks and giving due considerati on to ground realities. The Board is 
also responsible for supervising and monitoring conduct guidelines. 

 
Board Meeting and Attendance  
During the year seven meetings of the Board of Directors of the company were held attendance by each 
director is shown below:  

Sr. 

No 
Name Attendance 

1. Mrs Nilofar Mukhtar 4 

2. Mr. Faisal Mukhtar 7 

3. Mrs. Mahwesh Faisal Mukhtar 7 

4. Ms. Abida Mukhtar 7 

5. Ejaz Hussain 6 

6. Mr. Muhammad Yousaf 6 

7. Muhammad Gul Nawaz 5 

 
Audit Committee Meeting and Attendance  

During the year five meetings of the audit committee of the company were held; attendance by each member 
is as under 

 

Sr. 

No 
Name Attendance 

1. Muhammad Gul Nawaz 5 

2. Ms. Mahwesh Faisal Mukhtar 5 

3. Mrs Nilofar Mukhtar 5 

 
 HR and Remuneration Committee   
During the year, one meeting of HR and Remuneration Committee of the company was held; attendance by 
each member is as under.  

 
Sr.  

No  

Name  Attendance  

1.  Mr. Muhammad Yousaf  1  

2.  Mrs Nilofar Mukhtar  1  

3.  Ms. Mahwesh Faisal Mukhtar  1  
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Internal Financial Controls   
A system of sound internal control is established and implemented at all levels within the Company. The system 
of internal control is sound in design for ensuring achievement of company’s objectives, operational 
effectiveness and efficiency, reliable financial reporting and compliance with laws, regulations and policies.  

 
Financial Statements   
The financial statements of the company have been duly audited and signed by the auditors of the Company, 
M/S Rizwan & Company Chartered Accountants, and their report is attached with the financial statements. 
Auditors of the Company have given an adverse opinion despite the discussions that the pandemic resulted in 
the withdrawals of from potential deals by two interested pa rties. In addition, the management also realized 
a short-term plan to  meet  cash flow requirements and to gradually pay down debt. Moreover, the company’s 
management is avidly pursuing sale of its land and business and hopes to be able to fulfil its plan in  the near 
future. The response of your Directors with respect to it are as follows:  

 
Adverse Opinion  Justification  

As at reporting date; the Company's accumulated loss 
stood at Rupees 366.478 million (2019; Rupees 293.786 
million), its equity has been eroded fully and its current 
liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rupees  
502.502million  (2019;  Rupees 293.786 million). 
Moreover, the financial results show adverse key 
financial ratios and cases against the Company by the 
banking companies (as fully explained in note 22) for 
recovery of the loan amounts, the outcome of these 
cases remain uncertain. The Company has not been 
able to pay long term financing and short-term 
borrowing obtained from banking companies 
amounting to Rupees 156.645 million  and Rupees 
116.220 million respectively and accrued markup  
thereon  even  after  lapse  of  considerable  time  after 
restructuring. The Company has already suspended its 
operations since 2014 and decided to dispose off all of  
its  property, plant and equipment for implementation 

 

The management of the Company tried its utmost 
efforts to dispose-off land and building but due to 
Corona virus pandemic, two of the interested parties 
fell through.  

 
Therefore, the management actively sought an interim 
route and for the time being, it held an EOGM in April 
2020 to lease out its premises. The idea is to generate 
enough income to avoid further erosion of equity and 
to meet cash flow requirements.  

 
Nonetheless, despite the challenges, the Company is 
still making efforts to dispose land and building for the
revival of the company. The management strongly 
believes in executing its business plan and upon 
realization of proceeds;  the  Company  shall  implement
alternate  business plan as envisaged and approved by 
the  shareholders.  
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shareholders in its meeting held on April 30, 2018. The 
Company neither be able to dispose off  land and 
building to settle liabilities towards lenders and 
creditors nor be able to implement alternate business 
plan as envisaged in the shareholders meeting held on 
April 30, 2018. During the year, the Company had 
decided to lease out its factory premises with the 
approval of the shareholders in its meeting  held  on  
April 20,  2020;  however,  we  were  neither provided with 
future projections of the Company nor alternate 
business plan to revive the Company to support going 
concern  assumption.  
These conditions and events indicate material  
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the 
Company’s ability  to  continue  as  a  going  concern  and  
therefore  it  may not be able to realize its assets and 
discharge its liabilities in normal course of business. 
However, as described in note 2.2 to these financial 
statements have been prepared under the going 
concern assumption. Because of the circumstances and 
events as mentioned herein, in our opinion,

 
the

 
Company

 
cannot

 
be

 
considered

 
to

 
be

 
a

 
going concern 

and
 
thus the preparation of these financial statements 

on a going concern basis is inappropriate. In our 
opinion, the financial statements should reflect 
adjustments to reduce the value of assets to their 
recoverable amount and to provide any further 
liabilities that may arise.

 
These adjustments are likely to be substantial,

 
and

 
in

 view
 
of

 
further

 
qualifications

 
discussed in the following 

paragraphs below we are unable to determine
 
the

 quantum
 
of

 
the

 
required

 
adjustments

 
and

 
provisions

 with a reasonable degree of accuracy.
 

 of alternate business plan with the approval of 
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As disclosed in note 14, the Company has recognised 
accrued markup on short term borrowings and  long-
term financing to the extent of Rupees 54.127 million 
and Rupees 54.302 million respectively. As per 
confirmations received  from  various  banks,  the  
Company  has  recognised accrued mark up of Rupees 
108.429 million against aggregate accrued mark up of 
Rupees 70.233 million (excluding National Bank of 
Pakistan) as per confirmations received from banks for 
which no adjustment has been made on the plea that 
it will be incorporated upon final 
settlement/extinguishment of short term and long 
term borrowings with the banks. Moreover, the 
Company had not charged the markup / cost of funds 
on long term financing and short-term borrowings 
during the year. Further, as per confirmation received 
from National Bank of Pakistan; there is a difference of 
Rupees 1.314 million in loan amount as per books of 
account of the Company for which no reconciliation 
has been provided to us. The effect of this matter has 
not been adjusted appropriately in

 
these

 
financial statements.

 

Auditors  were  provided  with  letters  from  banks  stating  
the principal amount and mark up. The mark up 
amounts accrued in the Company’s accounts do not 
reflect the  settled mark-up amount. The difference in 
mark-up amount of PKR 108.429 shall be settled upon 
execution of settlement with the  Banks.  

 
In reference to the variance of NBP, the PKR 1.314 
million is due to erroneous markup charged by NBP and 
we are in discussion to make the correction.  

Trade and other payables amounting to Rupees 
135.293 million as disclosed in note 12 includes Trade 
and other payables amounting to Rupees 108.566 
million could not be verified in absence of the direct 
confirmations. The

 
cumulative effect of this matter has 

neither been determined not adjusted in these
financial statements.

 
  

 

 
 

 

-Most of these amounts are older than five years and 
are time barred in accordance with the Limitation Act. 
In addition to that, these trade and other payables are 
owned to traders / farmers that have limited booking 
keeping abilities.

 
Therefore,

 
most

 
of

 
these

 
individuals /

companies are not able to provide written
confirmations.

 
 

Nevertheless, the management provided details and 
address of parties for confirmation and provided 
required information.
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The Company has not recognised liability against Gas 
Infrastructure Development Cess to the extent of 
Rupees 22.333 million despite the fact that Supreme
Court of Pakistan has announced its decision on
August 13, 2020 where Honorable Court has rejected
appeals filed by various companies and has directed
all the companies to pay the outstanding amounts
within twenty four quarterly installments with effect
from August 01, 2020. The effect of this matter has
not been adjusted appropriately in these financial
statements.

 
 

       
    

The SNGPL levied surcharge of Rupees 22.954 million 
under Gas Infrastructure Development Cess on 
industrial undertakings  during FY 2012 to May 2015. 
Lahore High Court passed an order and directed to 
constitute a High Power Committee of SNGPL to look 
into the case of industrial undertaking. Federal 
Government challenged the decision of the High Court 
of Sindh, which declared  the GIDC as ultra vires and 
unconstitutional in case of another company, and 
obtained a direction from a Larger Bench of the High 
Court of Sindh suspending the order. In  a  separate  case,
Peshawar  High  Court  passed  a  judgment on May 31, 
2017 validating the Gas Infrastructure Development 
Cess Act, 2015 and the same has been challenged by the 
petitioners in the Supreme Court of Pakistan.  

 
During the current year, Gas Infrastructure 
Development Cess Act, 2015 (Amendment) Ordinance, 
2019 was promulgated by the Federal Government 
which provided for  50%  waiver  of  outstanding  liability  as
at

 
December

 
31, 2018. Later, the said Ordinance was 

withdrawn by the Federal Government and pending 
decision with The Supreme Court of Pakistan. Now 
Subsequent to the reporting date; Supreme Court of 
Pakistan has announced on August 13, 2020 its reserved 
verdict on the Gas Infrastructure

 
Development

 
Cess

(GIDC)
 
and

 
has

 
rejected the appeals and ordered the 

companies to pay the outstanding
 

amount.
 

Despite
 
the

 
Supreme

 
Court

 
of

 
Pakistan

 
verdict

specifically the textile industrial units feel grieved and 
levy of unjustified cess

 
applied contrary to the 

provisions of the GIDC ACT, 2015. The Textile companies 
through APTMA has filed a review petition before the 
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan.; therefore, the 
amount of the GIDC amounting to Rupees 22.954 
million has not been recognized

 
in

 
these

 
financial

statements
 

as
 

the
 

Company
 

is of the view that decision 
on review petition by Supreme Court of Pakistan shall 
be decided in favour of the Company.

 We could not verify the unclaimed dividend payable 
pertaining to financial years ended on June 30, 2000 
and June 30, 2001 amounting to Rupees 1,159,777 in 
absence of

 
underlying

 
record

 
with

 
the

 
Company.

 
The

 effect
 

of
 

this matter has not been adjusted 
appropriately in these financial statements.

  

The Company issued out a dividend in the Fiscal Year 
2000 and FY 2001. Over the years, a small portion of the 
dividend remains payable. During the past two decades, 
the company management has issued out dividend 
warrants at shareholder request.

 

As highlighted earlier, the Management of the Company is in process of restructuring and considers the 

adverse opinion to be unmerited. 
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Pattern of Shareholding 

 
The Company is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2020 along 
with disclosure as required under the Code of Corporate Governance is included in this Annual Report. The 
Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children have not 
traded in the shares of the Company. 

 
Statutory Auditors of the Company 

 
The present auditors' M/S Rizwan & Company, Chartered Accountants will retire on conclusion of Annual 
General Meeting being held on October 25, 2020. As suggested by the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors 
has recommended their re-appointment as auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2021. 

 
Your Directors are continuing their efforts to prepare a best possible solution for the benefit of all the 
stakeholders. We would like to thank all our shareholders for their continued support. 

 
Directors' Remuneration 

 

The remuneration of the directors is determined by the Board as per provisions of section 170 of the Companies 
Act, 2017 on the basis of standards in the market and reflects demand to competencies and efforts in the light 
of the scope of their work and responsibilities of the directors. Remuneration of Chief Executive is reviewed 
annually by the board of directors. During the year ended June 30, 2020, no remuneration and/fee is paid to 
chief executive officer, executive directors, non-executive directors and independent directors for performing 
their duties and attending the meetings of board of directors and/or committees of the board. 
 

Chairperson’s Review 

The accompanied Chairperson’s review deals with the performance of the Company for the year ended 30 June 
2020 and future outlook. The directors endorse the contents of the review. 

 

Acknowledgement 

 

Yours directors record with appreciation, the efforts of the company's managers, technicians, staff and workers 
who have vigorously to meet the target. Your directors also extend their appreciation to the company's banker, 
buyers and suppliers for their cooperation. 

 

For and Behalf of the Board 

 

 
 

Abida Mukhtar  Nilofar Mukhtar 

Chief Executive Officer
   

Director
 

 

Lahore: 01 October 2020
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Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Dar es Salaam Textiles Mills Limited for the 
year ended June 30, 2020 in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with 
the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of 
the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents 
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and 
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to 
consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion 
on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also 
ensure compliance with the requirements of Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have 
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of 
Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine 
the Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were 
undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance 
does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in 
the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations as reflected in the 
paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:

Reference Paragraph
Description
19.1 Appropriate arrangements for orientation courses and training for the directors have not been carried 

out.
19.2 The positions of the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary are held by one person contrary to the 

requirements of the Regulations.
15 and 19.3 The Company has opted not to fill the vacancy of Internal auditor since November 01, 2019.

Rizwan & Company
Chartered Accountants

Lahore: October 01, 2020 Engagement Partner: Imran Bashir

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
To the Members of Dar es Salaam Textiles Mills Limited
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The Company has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (here-in-after referred as the Regulations) in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are seven (7) as per the following:

a) Male: Four (4)

b) Female:Three (3)

2. The composition of Board of Directors (the Board) is as follows:

Independent director in which fraction is not rounded up as one as this “clause” was added in the regulation 
6 of the Regulations issued on September 25, 2019, and the Board was constituted before that date and the 
Regulation has provided relaxation that for the purpose of electing independent director, the Board shall be 
reconstituted not later than expiry of its current term.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed 
companies, including this Company.

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken 
to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 
policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant 
policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been 
taken by the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these 
Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director 

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Dar es Salaam Textile Mills Limited For the year ended June 30, 2020

Category  Names  

Independent Directors  Mr. Muhammad Gul Nawaz 
Mr. Muhammad Yousaf Khan  

Non-executive Directors  Mr. Faisal Mukhtar  
 Mrs. Mahwesh Faisal Mukhtar  
 Mr. Ejaz Hussain  

Executive Directors  Mrs. Nilofar Mukhtar 
Ms. Abida Mukhtar 
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elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the 
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance 
with the Act and these Regulations;

9. Out of seven Directors, no director is duly certified or exempted, from the Directors' Training Program.

10. There was no fresh appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal 
Audit during the year ended June 30, 2020. The Board has approved the remuneration of Chief 
Financial Officer and Company Secretary and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations; 
The position of Head of Internal Audit remained vacant from November 01, 2019 to date during the 
year.

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before 
approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed Committees comprising of members given below:

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the 
committees for compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings of the Committees are as follows:

15. The Board has set up an internal audit function; however, during the year the internal audit 
department remained unfunctional because of vacancy in the office of Head of Internal Audit.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating 
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) 
and registered with the Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in 
compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as 
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and that they and the partners of 

Name of Committees  Names of members and chairman  

Board Audit Committee  Mr. Muhammad Gul Nawaz 
Mrs. Mahwesh Faisal Mukhtar 
Mr. Faisal Mukhtar  

Chairman 
Member 
Member 

Human Resource and 
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Muhammad Yousaf Khan  Chairman  
Mrs. Mahwesh Faisal Mukhtar  Member  
Mr. Faisal Mukhtar  Member  

Name of Committees  Frequency of meetings  

Board Audit Committee
 

Quarterly

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee Yearly
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the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent 
children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company 
Secretary or Director of the Company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other 
services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and 
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33, and 36 of the Regulations have 
been complied with; and

19. Explanations for non-compliance with the requirements other than of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 
33, and 36 are as follows:

19.1 During the year; the Company planned to arrange Directors Training Program in fourth quarter of 2020; 
however, the same could not be managed because of lockdown and suspension of all business 
activities owing to Pandemic Covid-19. The management shall arrange training for the directors under 
Directors Training Program as well as orientation course of the directors. The Company is committed to 
comply with this requirement and has planned to arrange the Directors' Training Program as per 
requirement over next two years.

19.2 The positions of the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary have been held by the same 
person as the Company is not in position to appoint separate person for each position of Chief Financial 
Officer and Company Secretary considering the quantum of work and financial position of the 
Company owing to closure of business and operations of the Company.

19.3 The position of Head of Internal Audit Function remained vacant during the year as referred to 
paragraph 15 and the management of the Company is of the view that vacancy shall be filled in upon 
implementation of alternate business plan to be approved by the shareholders.

(Nilofar Mukhtar) (Abida Mukhtar)

Director Chief Executive Officer

Lahore: October 01, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the members of Dar Es Salaam Textile Mills Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

 
Adverse Opinion 
 
We have audited the annexed financial statements of Dar Es Salaam Textile Mills Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2020, the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the 
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 
purposes of the audit. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part 
thereof do not conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and do not 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017, in the manner so required and respectively do 
not give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs for the year ended June 30, 2020 and of 
the loss, other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 
 
Basis for Adverse Opinion  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professio nal 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse opinion and after due 
verification we report that: 
 
a)  As at reporting date; the Company's accumulated loss stood at Rupees 343.524 million (2019; Rupees 

293.786 million), its equity has been eroded fully and its current liabilities exceeded its current assets 
by Rupees 479.548 million (2019; Rupees 119.691 million). Moreover, the financial results show 
adverse key financial ratios and cases against the Company by the banking companies (as fully 
explained in note 22) for recovery of the loan amounts, the outcome of these cases remain uncertain. 
The Company has not been able to pay long term financing and short-term borrowing obtained from 
banking companies amounting to Rupees 156.645 million and Rupees 116.220 million respectively 
and accrued markup thereon even after lapse of considerable time after restructuring. The Company 
has already suspended its operations since 2014 and decided to dispose off all of its property, plant 
and equipment for implementation of alternate business plan with the approval of shareholders in 
its meeting held on April 30, 2018. The Company neither be able to dispose off land and building to 
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settle liabilities towards lenders and creditors nor be able to implement alternate business plan as 
envisaged in the shareholders meeting held on April 30, 2018. During the year, the Company had 
decided to lease out its factory premises with the approval of the shareholders in its meeting held on 
April 20, 2020; however, we were neither provided with future projections of the Company nor 
alternate business plan to revive the Company  to support going concern assumption.  
 

These conditions and events indicate material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore it may not be able to realize its assets 
and discharge its liabilities in normal course of business. Because of the circumstances and events as 
mentioned herein, in our opinion, the Company cannot be considered to be a going concern and thus 
the preparation of these financial statements on a going concern basis is inappropriate.  In our 
opinion, the financial statements should reflect adjustments to reduce the value of assets to  their 
recoverable amount and to provide any further liabilities that may arise. These adjustments are likely 
to be substantial, and in view of further qualifications discussed in the following paragraphs  below 
we are unable to determine the quantum of the  required adjustments and provisions with a 
reasonable degree of accuracy.  
 

b)  Trade and other payables amounting to Rupees 135.293 million  as disclosed in note 13 includes Trade 
and other payables amounting to Rupees 108.566 million could not be verified in absence of the 
direct confirmations. The cumulative effect of this matter has neither been determined not adjusted 
in these financial statements.  
 

c)  As disclosed in note 14, the Company has recognised accrued markup  on short term borrowings and 
long-term financing  to the extent of Rupees  54.127  million  and Rupees 54.302 million respectively. 
As per confirmations received from various banks, the Company  has  recognised  aggregate mark up 
of Rupees 70.233  million (excluding National Bank of Pakistan) against Rupees 50.044 million as per 
confirmations received from the banks for which no adjustment has been made in these financial 
statements by the management on the plea that it will be incorporated upon final 
settlement/extinguishment of short term and long term borrowings.  National Bank of Pakistan has 
not confirmed the amount due from the Company on account of Markup whereas the Company 
recognized accrued markup of Rupees 38.196 million as at reporting date. Moreover, the Company 
had not  charged  the markup / cost of funds on long term financing and short-term borrowings during 
the year.  Further, as per confirmation received from National Bank of Pakistan; there is a difference 
of Rupees 1.314 million in loan amount as per books of account of the Company for which no 
reconciliation has been provided to us. The effect of this matter has not  been adjusted appropriately 
in these financial statements.  

 

d)  The Company has not recognised liability against Gas Infrastructure Development Cess to the extent 
of Rupees 22.333 million despite the fact that Supreme Court of Pakistan has announced its decision 
on August 13, 2020 where Honorable Supreme Court has rejected appeals filed by various companies 

and has directed all the companies to pay the outstanding amounts  within twenty four monthly 
installments with effect from August 01, 2020.  The effect of this matter has not been adjusted 
appropriately in these financial statements.  
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e)  We could not verify the unclaimed dividend payable pertaining to financial years ended on June 30, 
2000 and June 30, 2001 amounting to Rupees 1,159,777 in absence of underlying record with the 
Company. Moreover, the amount has not been kept in unpaid dividend account under Section 244 
of the Companies Act, 2017. The effect of this matter has not been adjusted appropriately in these 
financial statements. 

 

Key Audit Matters 
 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. Following are the key audit matter(s): 
 
 

Key audit matter  How our audit addressed the key audit matter  
a)  Contingencies and Company's exposure to 

litigation risk  
 
The Company is exposed to different laws, 
regulations and interpretations thereof and hence, 
there is a litigation risk. In our judgement, the 
Company has significant litigation cases and other 
contingencies, details of which are disclosed  in note 
21

 
to the accompanying financial statements. 

Moreover, in absence of management’s plans for 
future action in relation to its going concern 
assessment, the going concern assumption remain 
critical. 

 Given the nature and amounts involved in such 
cases and contingencies, and the appellate forums 
at which these are pending, the ultimate outcome 
and the resultant accounting in the financial 
statements is subject to significant judgement, 
which can change over time as new facts emerge 
and each legal case progresses and the contingency 
crystallizes, and therefore, we have identified this as 
key audit matter.

 
 

 
 
 

Our audit procedures amongst others, included the 
following:  

 
-  Obtaining understanding of the Company’s 

processes and controls over litigations through 
meetings with the management and review of the 
minutes of the Board of Directors and Board Audit 
Committee;

 
-

 
Reading correspondence of the Company with 
regulatory departments and the Company’s 
external counsel, where available;

 -
 
Where relevant, also assessing external legal 
advices obtained by the Company;

 -
 
Discussing open matters and developments with 
the management of the Company;

  -

 
Obtaining direct confirmations of borrowings as 
at year end from the banking companies;

 -

 
Obtained direct external confirmations from legal 
advisors and others, where appropriate on 
material cases, and assessing the replies received 
thereto; and

  -

 

Whilst noting the inherent uncertainties involved 
with the legal and regulatory matters, assessing 
the appropriateness of the related disclosures 
made in the annexed financial statements.



42 | Dar es Salaam Textile Mills Limited

We evaluated that appropriate disclosures and 
presentation have been made in these financial 
statements.

 

b)

 

Transfer of Non-current Assets Held for Sale to 
Investment Property (Refer note 6 to the 
financial statements)

 
 

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Company 
has transferred its non-current assets held for sale 
to property, plant and equipment and subsequently 
transferred to investment property in accordance 
with the approval of the shareholders to lease out 
its factory premises.

  
 

The transfer of non-current assets held for sale to 
property, plant and equipment and investment 
property involves the assessment of 
appropriateness of fair valuation

 
and

 
effect of 

deprecation in accordance with the requirements of 
applicable accounting and reporting standards. As 
transfer of non-current assets held for sale to 
investment property constitutes a significant 
amount and involves significant judgmental areas 
such as fair valuation of investment property; 
calculation of depreciation for the period since 
assets were classified as held for sale as per 
applicable accounting and reporting standards, we 
have considered this a key audit matter. 
 

 
 
 
 

Our audit procedures amongst others, included the 
following:

 
 

-
 

obtained an understanding of the Company’s 
process with respect to transfer of non-current 
assets held for sale to property, plant and 
equipment and investment property and tested 
controls relevant to such process; 

 

-
 

checked the date of transfer of non-current assets 
held for sale to investment property and 
property, plant and equipment;

 

- obtaining and inspecting the valuation report 
prepared by the valuer engaged by the 
management and comparing the fair value with 
the carrying value of investment property to 
identify impairment, if any  

- reperformance of calculation of depreciation 
since the assets was classified as non-current 
assets held for sale to reclassified as property, 
plant and equipment;  

- assessed whether the transfer of non-current 
assets held for sale to investment property and 
property, plant and equipment was in accordance 
with the applicable accounting and reporting 
standards;  

- provided impairment of assets, where required;
- tested the existence of assets through physical

verification on a sample basis; and  
- assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures 

made in the financial statements in accordance 
with the accounting and reporting standards;

 
 
The key assumptions and inputs have been 
appropriately considered in estimating the fair value
of investment property.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  
 
Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requiremen ts 
of Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
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 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain a udit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opin ion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, includin g the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 
We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 
 

a) Except for the matters referred in paragraphs (a) to ( f), proper books of account have been kept 
by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);  
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b) because of the significant matters described in basis for adverse opinion section, the statement 
of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon 
have not been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are not in 
agreement with the books of account and returns; 

c) Except for the matters referred in paragraphs (a)  to (f), expenditure incurred and guarantees 
extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and  

d) No zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Usher Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).  
 
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Imran Bashir.  
 
  
 
 
 
 Rizwan and Company 
Lahore: October 01, 2020 Chartered Accountants 
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2020 2019

Note

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property and equipment 6 - -

Investment property 7 322,131,000

      

-

                       

Long term deposits 8 1,426,354

           

1,426,354

          

323,557,354

      

1,426,354

          

Current Assets

Advances, deposits and other receivables 9 1,325,970

           

2,115,119

          

Tax refunds due from government 10 4,056,968

           

4,056,968

          

Advance income tax 18,440,245

         

19,585,244

        

Cash and bank balances 11 295,806

               

283,435

              

Non-current assets held for sale 12 15,196,500

         

370,713,296

      

39,315,489

         

396,754,062

      

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 13 135,363,604
      

133,990,187
      

Unpaid dividend 1,159,777           1,159,777          

Accrued markup 14 108,429,327      108,429,327      
Short term borrowings 15 116,220,088      116,220,088      
Current portion of long term financing 16 156,645,197

      
156,645,197

      Income tax payable 26 1,045,943

           
-

                       518,863,936

      

516,444,576

      Working capital employed (479,548,447)

     

(119,690,514)

     Non-current liabilities -

                        

-

                       

NET CAPITAL EMPLOYED (155,991,093)

     

(118,264,160)

     
Represented by:

Share capital and reserves

Share capital 18 80,000,000

         

80,000,000

        

Accumulated loss (343,523,929) (293,786,257)

Revaluation surplus 19 6,663,300 -

Loan from sponsors 20 100,869,536 95,522,097

TOTAL EQUITY (155,991,093) (118,264,160)

Contingencies and commitments 21

(Rupees)

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial information.

______________
Nilofar Mukhtar

Director

______________
Abida Mukhtar

Chief Executive Officer

_____________________
Shahid Ameen Chaudhry

Chief Financial Officer



Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended June 30, 2020
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The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial information.

______________
Nilofar Mukhtar

Director

______________
Abida Mukhtar

Chief Executive Officer

_____________________
Shahid Ameen Chaudhry

Chief Financial Officer

2020 2019

Note

Revenue - -

Cost of revenue -

                      

-

                      

Gross profit -

                      

-

                      

Other income 22 5,345,000
         

20,379,568
        

Administrative expenses 23 (12,349,214)
     

(18,270,397)
      

Other operating expenses 24 (40,180,320)     (7,018,677)         
(47,184,534)     (4,909,506)         

Finance costs 25 (5,845)
                

(24,853)
              Changes in fair value of investment property 93,649

               
-

                      Loss before taxation (47,096,730)

     
(4,934,359)

         
Income tax expense 26 (2,640,942)

       

-

                      
Loss after taxation (49,737,672)

     

(4,934,359)

         Earnings per share 27 (6.217)

                

(0.617)

                

(Rupees)

Lahore: October 01, 2020



Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended June 30, 2020

48 | Dar es Salaam Textile Mills Limited

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial information.

______________
Nilofar Mukhtar

Director

______________
Abida Mukhtar

Chief Executive Officer

_____________________
Shahid Ameen Chaudhry

Chief Financial Officer

2020 2019

Note

Loss after taxation (49,737,672)   (4,934,359)       

Other comprehensive income -                    -                      

Total comprehensive loss for the year (49,737,672)
   

(4,934,359)
       

(Rupees)

Lahore: October 01, 2020
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______________
Nilofar Mukhtar

Director

______________
Abida Mukhtar

Chief Executive Officer

_____________________
Shahid Ameen Chaudhry

Chief Financial OfficerLahore: October 01, 2020

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended June 30, 2020

Balance as at June 30, 2018 80,000,000

    

(288,851,898)

    

-

                   

75,882,097

          

(132,969,801)

Loss for the year -

                   

(4,934,359)

         

-

                   

-

                        

(4,934,359)

Other comprehensive income -

                   

-

                       

-

                   

-

                        

-

Total comprehensive loss for the year -

                   

(4,934,359)

         

-

                   

-

                        

(4,934,359)

Transactions with sponsors

Loan received -                   -                       -                   19,640,000          19,640,000

Balance as at June 30, 2019 80,000,000

    
(293,786,257)

    
-

                   
95,522,097

          
(118,264,160)

Loss for the year -

                   

(49,737,672)

       

-

                   

-

                        

(49,737,672)

Other comprehensive income -

                   

-

                       

-

                   

-

                        

-

Total comprehensive loss for the year -

                   

(49,737,672)

       

-

                   

-

                        

(49,737,672)

Revaluation surplus during the year -

                   

-

                       

6,663,300

      

-

                        

6,663,300

Transactions with sponsors:

Loan received during the year - net - - - 5,347,439 5,347,439

Balance as at June 30, 2020 80,000,000 (343,523,929) 6,663,300 100,869,536 (155,991,093)

(Rupees)

Share capital
Accumulated 

loss

Loan from 

sponsors
Total

Revaluation 

surplus
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The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial information.

______________
Nilofar Mukhtar

Director

______________
Abida Mukhtar

Chief Executive Officer

_____________________
Shahid Ameen Chaudhry

Chief Financial OfficerLahore: October 01, 2020

2020 2019

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Note

Loss before taxation (47,096,730) (4,934,359)

Adjustments for non-cash charges/items:

Depreciation 6 932,314 -

Amortization - 59,341

Impairment on intangibles - 237,365

Effect for reclassification of non-current assets held for sale 24 34,918,787 -

Impairment on property and equipment 2,831,595

                  

-

Impairment on non-current assets held for sale 1,460,049

                  

-

Workers welfare fund 70,720

                        

-

                              

Gain on sale of non-current asset held for sale -

                              

(333,882)

Provision for doubtful advances 411,419

                      

-

                              

Credit balances written back (390,000)

                    

(16,814,510)

             

Changes in fair value of investment property (93,649)

                       

-

                              

Debit balances written off 487,750

                      

5,492,462

                 

40,628,985

                

               (11,359,224)

Cash flows before working capital changes (6,467,745)

                 

               (16,293,583)

Cash flow from working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

-

                              
                    2,938,850 

Advances, deposits and other receivables (110,020)
                    

                 (6,217,356)

Tax refunds due from government -                                                   4,904,412 

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:

Trade and other payables 2,120,042

                  
                       962,069 

Changes in working capital 2,010,022

                  

                    2,587,975 

Net cash used in operating activities (4,457,723)

                 

               (13,705,608)

Income tax paid (450,000)

                    

                       (62,400)

Net cash used in operating activities (4,907,723)

                 

               (13,768,008)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of non-current assets held for sale -

                              

                       637,686 

Net cash generated from investing activities -

                               

                       637,686 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Loan from sponsors - net 4,920,094                  19,640,000 

Short term borrowings -                (23,132,000)

Long term financing -                  (1,968,000)

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 4,920,094                  (5,460,000)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 12,371                (18,590,322)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 283,435                  18,873,757 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 11 295,806                        283,435 

(Rupees)

Stores and spares

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial information.

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended June 30, 2020



Notes to the Financial Information
for the year ended June 30, 2020

1 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Dar Es Salaam Textile Mills Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on September 28, 1989 as 
public unlisted company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The 
address of registered office of the Company is 54-C III, Gulberg III, Lahore. The Company is listed in Pakistan 
Stock Exchange. The Company was engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of yarn. 

2 GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION

The Company has closed its operations since 2014 and reported accumulated loss of Rupees 343.524 million 
(2019: Rupees 293.786 million). The current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rupees 479.548 million 
(2019: Rupees 119.691 million) as of reporting date and there are pending litigations cases filed by the banking 
companies. In order to settle the liabilities towards lenders and other creditors, the Company in Extra Ordinary 
General Meeting (EOGM) held on April 30, 2018 approved alternate business plan and disposal off property, 
plant and equipment. The alternate business plan was based on the disposal of plant & machinery, land and 
building and repay loans to lenders, creditors and to meet working capital requirements for implementation of 
alternate business plan. The Company had disposed off plant and machinery but could not dispose off land and 
building to settle the liabilities with lenders / creditors and implement alternate business plan as envisaged in 
EOGM held on April 30, 2018.

During the last quarter of the financial year, the Company has leased out its factory premises in accordance with 
the approval of the shareholders on April 20, 2020 to meet cash flow requirements of the Company. The 
Company is making its fullest efforts to sell factory premises in order to generate sufficient cash to settle its 
liabilities towards lenders and other creditors in foreseeable future and implement revised alternate business 
plan with the approval of the shareholders. As the Company’s operations is already closed since 2014; 
therefore, Covid-19 did not impact on the financial position of the Company. 

In view of the above, these financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis on the grounds 
that the Company will be able to achieve satisfactory levels of profitability in the future drawn up as per plan by 
the management for this purpose  and bringing its liabilities to serviceable level and availability of adequate 
working capital through support from sponsors. The management is of the view that the Company will 
continue to get support of sponsors. The financial statements consequently do not include any adjustment 
relating to the realization of the assets and liquidation of its liabilities that might be necessary would the 
Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017  and provisions of and directives issued under the Companies 
Act, 2017. Where provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the 
provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.
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3.2 INITIAL APPLICATION OF STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS TO EXISTING STANDARDS

a) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are 
effective in current year.

A number of new or amended standards became applicable for the current reporting period, and the Company 
had to change its accounting policies and make adjustments as a result of adopting the following standards:

- IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ - IFRS 16 replaces the previous lease standard: IAS 17 Leases. It will result in almost all leases 
being recognised on the statement of financial position, as the distinction between operating and finance 
leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to 
pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and low value leases. The impact of this 
standard has been given in note 5.1.1.

- IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 
01, 2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under 
IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of 
current and deferred tax.

- Amendment to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2019). For a debt instrument to be eligible for 
measurement at amortised cost or FVOCI, IFRS 9 requires its contractual cash flows to meet the SPPI criterion - 
i.e. the cash flows are 'solely payments of principal and interest'. Some prepayment options could result in the 
party that triggers the early termination receiving compensation from the other party (negative compensation). 
The amendment allows that financial assets containing prepayment features with negative compensation can 
be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) if they meet the 
other relevant requirements of IFRS 9. The application of amendment is not likely to have an impact on 
Company's financial statements.

- Amendment to IAS 28 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' - Long Term Interests in Associates and 
Joint Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after January 01, 2019). The amendment will affect 
companies that finance such entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected 
in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or 'LTI'). The amendment and accompanying 
example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which both 
standards are to be applied. The application of amendment has no impact on Company's financial statements.

- Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits'- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after January 01, 2019). The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or 
settlement of a defined benefit plan, a company now uses updated actuarial assumptions to determine its 
current service cost and net interest for the period; and the effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when 
calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive 
income. The application of amendment has no impact on Company's financial statements.

- Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to 
following approved accounting standards:

- IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify  the 
accounting treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets  the 
de?nition of a business. A company remeasures its previously held interest in a joint operation when it 
obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held interest in a joint 
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operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

- IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends  
(including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently  with the 
transaction that generates the distributable profits.

- IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings 
any borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.  

There are other amendments to published approved accounting and reporting standards and interpretations 
that are applicable for the financial year beginning on July 01, 2019 but are considered not to be relevant or do 
not have any significant effect on the Company’s financial reporting and operations and, therefore, have not 
been presented in these financial statements.

b) New accounting standards, amendments and IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective.

There are number of other standards, amendments to the published approved accounting and reporting 
standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company and, 
therefore, have not been presented in these financial statements.

- Amendment to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Definition of a Business (effective for business combinations 
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or after January 01, 
2020). The IASB has issued amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity determines 
whether it has acquired a business or a group of assets. The amendments clarify that to be considered a 
business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive 
process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments include an 
election to use a concentration test. The standard is effective for transactions in the future and therefore would 
not have an impact on past financial statements.

- Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020). The 
amendments are intended to make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended 
to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. In addition, the IASB has also issued guidance 
on how to make materiality judgments when preparing their general purpose financial statements in 
accordance with IFRS Standards.

- On March 29, 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised Conceptual 
Framework for Financial Reporting which is applicable immediately contains changes that will set a new 
direction for IFRS in the future. The Conceptual Framework primarily serves as a tool for the IASB to develop 
standards and to assist the IFRS Interpretations Committee in interpreting them. It does not override the 
requirements of individual IFRSs and any inconsistencies with the revised Framework will be subject to the 
usual due process – this means that the overall impact on standard setting may take some time to crystallise. 
The companies may use the Framework as a reference for selecting their accounting policies in the absence of 
specific IFRS requirements. In these cases, companies should review those policies and apply the new guidance 
retrospectively as of January 01, 2020, unless the new guidance contains specific scope outs.

- Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 -The amendments in Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020) clarify that entities would continue to apply certain 
hedge accounting requirements assuming that the interest rate benchmark on which the hedged cash flows 
and cash flows from the hedging instrument are based will not be altered as a result of interest rate benchmark 
reform.
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- Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16) - The amendment provides lessees with an 
exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification.

The above new standards, amendments and interpretations are not likely to have an impact on Company’s 
financial statements. There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved 
accounting standards that are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore, have 
not been presented here.

3.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak rupee, which is the functional and presentation currency for 
the Company.

4 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

4.1 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for valuation of 
certain financial instruments at fair value, certain liabilities at amortised cost and investment property at fair 
value. In these financial statements, except for the amounts reflected in the statement of cash flows, all 
transactions have been accounted for on accrual basis.

4.2 Significant accounting judgments and critical accounting estimates / assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards require the use 
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process 
of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are 
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which 
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are 
significant to the Company’s financial statements or where judgments were exercised in application of 
accounting policies are as follows:

a) Taxation

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions taken by appellate 
authorities. Instances where the Company's view differs from the view taken by the income tax 
department at the assessment and appellate stages and where the Company considers that its views 
on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

b) Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

Management has made estimates of residual values, useful lives and recoverable amounts of certain 
items of property and equipment. Any change in these estimates in future years might affect the 
carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect 
on the depreciation charge and impairment loss.

c) Provision for expected credit loss for advances and other receivables

The Company reviews its advances and other receivables at each reporting date to assess whether 
provision should be recorded in the statement of profit or loss. In particular, judgment by management 
is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level 
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of provision required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual 
results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provisions.

d) Contingencies

The Company has disclosed its contingent liabilities for the pending litigations and claims against the 
Company based on its judgment and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial 
outcome. The actual outcome of these litigations and claims can have an effect on the carrying 
amounts of the liabilities recognized at the balance sheet date. However, based on the best judgment 
of the Company and its legal advisors, the likely outcome of these litigations and claims is remote and 
there is no need to recognize any liability at reporting date.

e) Investment property valuation

The Company normally uses the valuation performed by independent valuers as the fair value of its 
investment properties. The valuers make reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar 
properties. 

5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set-out below. 
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

5.1 Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company has applied the following standards for the first time for its annual reporting period commencing 
July 01, 2019:

5.1.1 IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective from accounting period beginning on or after January 01, 2019)

Effective January 01, 2019, the Company has adopted IFRS 16, “Leases” which replaces existing guidance on 
accounting for leases, including IAS 17 “Leases”, IFRIC 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a 
Lease”, SIC-15 “Operating Leases - Incentive” and SIC-27 “Evaluating the substance of transactions involving the 
legal form of a Lease”. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee 
recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right-of use of the underlying asset and a lease liability 
representing its obligations to make lease payments. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard 
i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases. The accounting polices relating to 
Company’s right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are as follows:

Lease liabilities and right-of-use assets

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on 
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange 
for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms 
and conditions.

From July 1, 2019, leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding liabilities at the date at which 
the leased assets are available for use by the Company.

The lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the 
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commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, amounts 
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase option if 
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the 
lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives receivable. The extension and 
termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when the Company is reasonably 
certain to exercise these options.

The lease liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. They are 
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease payments or 
an index or rate, change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual 
value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or 
termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the respective right-of-
use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of that right-of-use asset has been reduced to 
zero.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liabilities adjusted for any 
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an 
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on 
which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line 
method over the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future 
economic benefits. The carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and 
adjusted for certain remeasurements of the corresponding lease liability.

There is no impact on these financial statements upon adoption of IFRS 16, Leases.

5.2 Taxation

Current

Provision for taxation is based on taxable income at current rates after taking into account tax rebates, 
exemption and credits available, if any or minimum tax on turnover or alternate corporate tax on accounting 
profit and tax paid under final tax regime under relevant provisions of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The charge 
for current tax also includes adjustments to tax payable, where considered necessary, in respect of previous 
years. The amount of unpaid income tax in respect of annual or prior periods is recognized as liability and any 
excess paid over what is due in respect of current or prior periods is recognized as an asset.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of 
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation by the 
balance sheet date. In this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income expected to be 
subject to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Technical Release – 27 
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. 

The Company recognizes a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the 
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foreseeable future will be available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit or loss is recognized outside 
statement of profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

5.3 Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings are classified as 'financial liabilities at amortized cost'. On initial recognition, these are 
measured at cost, being fair value at the date the liability is incurred, less attributable transactions costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost with any difference between cost and 
value at maturity recognized in statement of profit or loss over the period of borrowings on effective interest 
rate.

5.4 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at amortized cost which is the fair value of the 
consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received.

5.5 Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized in financial statements when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligations and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provision is recognized 
at an amount that is the best estimate of an expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the 
reporting date. Where outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable, or where reliable 
estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made. A contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of 
outflow is remote.

5.6 Property and equipment

Owned

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost of 
operating fixed assets comprises historical cost, borrowing cost and other expenditure pertaining to the 
acquisition, construction, erection and installation of these assets.

Residual value and the useful life of assets are reviewed at each financial year end and if expectations differ 
from previous estimates the change is accounted for as change in accounting estimate in accordance with IAS 8 
- Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to statement 
of profit or loss as and when incurred. 

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss using the reducing balance method except for plant 
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and machinery on which depreciation is charged on production hours basis and leasehold land on which 
depreciation is charged on straight line basis so as to write off the cost over the expected useful life of assets at 
rates, which are disclosed in notes to the financial statements. Depreciation on additions to property, plant and 
equipment is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use, while no depreciation is charged 
for the month in which the asset is disposed of.

De-recognition

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the 
difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or 
expense in the statement of profit or loss.

5.7 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate method. Provision is made on the basis of lifetime expected credit losses that result 
from all possible default events over the expected life of the trade debts and other receivables. Bad debts are 
written off when considered irrecoverable.

5.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and current accounts held with banks.

5.9 Advances, deposits and prepayments

These are initially recognized at cost, which is the fair value of consideration given. Subsequent to the initial 
recognition assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that a 
financial asset or group of assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the estimated recoverable amount 
of that asset or group of assets is determined and any impairment losses recognized for the difference between 
the recoverable amount and the carrying value.

5.10 Financial instruments

5.10.1 Initial Recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given 
or received. These are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost or cost as the case may be.

a) Classification of financial assets

The Company classifies its financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss, at fair value through other 
comprehensive income, or at amortised cost. The Company determines the classification of financial assets at 
initial recognition. The classification of instruments (other than equity instruments) is driven by the Company’s 
business model for managing the financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial asset 
is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash 
flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are recognised subsequently at 
amortised cost. Financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets and  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise 
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on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding, are measured at 'fair value through other comprehensive income'. By default, all other financial 
assets are subsequently measured at 'fair value through profit or loss'.

b) Classification of financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or at amortised cost.  Financial 
liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured at fair value through profit 
or loss (such as instruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Company has opted to measure them at fair 
value through profit or loss.

5.10.2 Subsequent measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently carried at 
amortised cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any impairment. 

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recorded at fair value and 
transaction costs are expensed in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Realized 
and unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities held at 
fair value through profit or loss are included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
in the period in which they arise. Where management has opted to recognise a financial liability at fair value 
through profit or loss, any changes associated with the Company’s own credit risk will be recognized in other 
comprehensive income/(loss). Currently, there are no financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit 
or loss.

5.10.3 Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets that are measured at 
amortised cost.

5.10.4 Derecognition

The Company derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial 
assets expire or when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and rewards of 
ownership to another entity. On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference 
between the asset’s carrying value and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in 
profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at fair value 
through other comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments 
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity 
instrument which the Company has elected on initial recognition to measure at fair value through other 
comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation 
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to statement of changes in equity.

The Company derecognises financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are 
discharged or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and 
the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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5.10.5 Off setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if 
the Company has a legal right to set off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to 
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

5.11 Foreign currency translation

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at balance sheet 
date or at the contracted rates while foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange 
prevailing at the transaction date or at the contracted rates. Exchange gains and losses are charged to the 
statement of profit or loss.

5.12 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised at amounts that reflect the consideration that the Company expects to be entitled to in 
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, and is recognised on the following basis:

- Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when or as control of goods or services have been transferred to a 
customer either over time or at a point in time, when the performance obligations are met.

- Returns on deposit accounts at amortised cost are recognised using effective interest rate method;

- Revenue under Rental arrangement is recognized over the time upon satisfaction of performance obligations. 
The Company's contract performance obligations are ful?lled over the time possession of property is with the 
customer.

5.13 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which 
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added 
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All 
other borrowing costs are charged to  statement of profit or loss whenever incurred. Finance cost is accounted 
for on accrual basis.

5.14 Related party transactions

Transactions and contracts with the related parties are based on the policy that all transactions between the 
Company and related parties are carried out at an arm’s length.

5.15 Dividends

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which dividends 
are approved by the Board of Directors or Company’s shareholders as the case maybe.

5.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as share capital.
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5.17 Earnings per share ('EPS')

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / (loss) attributable to ordinary shares of the Company by the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS by weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be 
issued on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post tax effect of changes 
in profit and loan attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from conversion of all 
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

5.18 Impairment of assets - Non financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets, except for investment properties where fair value 
is reliably measurable,  inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable 
amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is greater of its value in use 
and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to 
their present values using a pre tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risk specific to the assets or cash generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of the asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its 
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Impairment 
losses recognised in respect of cash generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets 
in a unit on pro rata basis. Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for 
any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a 
change in the estimates used in determining the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to 
that extent that the asset's carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed carrying amount that would 
have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

5.19 Non current assets held for sale

Non-current assets that are expected to be recovered primarily through sale or distribution rather than 
through continuing use are classified as held for sale. Immediately before classification as held for sale, the 
assets are remeasured in accordance with the Company’s accounting policies. Thereafter the assets are 
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

5.20 Investment Property

Investment property is the property which is held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for 
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or 
for administrative purposes. Investment property comprises of freehold land and building on freehold land and 
carried at fair value. Change in fair value are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Fair values are determined 
based on an annual valuation performed by an independent valuer.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Company and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of 
profit or loss currently. The investment property of the Company has been valued by independent 
professionally qualified valuer as at June 30, 2020. 
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If an item of property and equipment becomes an investment property because its use has changed, any 
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognized in 
equity as a revaluation reserve for investment property. Any loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss 
except to the extent that it reverses a previously recognized revaluation gain on the same property in which 
case it is debited to equity. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Upon the disposal of such investment property, any surplus 
previously recorded in equity is transferred to retained earnings, the transfer is not made through the 
statement of profit or loss.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property and equipment and its fair 
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes for subsequent recording. Change 
in fair value up to the date of reclassification is recognized directly in profit or loss. 

An investment property is derecognized when it is either disposed off or permanently withdrawn from use and 
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or 
disposal of an investment property is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is 
derecognized.



63 | Dar es Salaam Textile Mills Limited

6 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets - tangible

Freehold land
Building on 

freehold land

Furniture and 

fittings

Office 

equipment
Computers

Cost

Balance as at July 01, 2018 - - - - - -

Additions during the year -

                       

-

                       

-

                       

- - -

Disposals during the year -

                       

-

                       

-

                       

-

                      

- -

Balance as at June 30, 2019 -

                       

-

                       

-

                       

-

                      

- -

Additions during the year -

                       

-

                       

-

                       

-

                      

- -

Transfer from non-current assets 
  held for sale

126,648,000

      

189,515,700

      

956,107

              

1,305,704

          

712,449 319,137,960

Transfer to investment property (126,648,000)

    

(189,515,700)

    

-

                       

-

                      

- (316,163,700)

Balance as at June 30, 2020 -

                       

-

                       

956,107

              

1,305,704

          

712,449 2,974,260

Depreciation / impairment

Balance as at July 01, 2018 -
                       

-
                       

-
                       

-
                      

- -

Charge for the year -                       -                       -                        -                       - -

Depreciation on disposals -

                       

-

                       

-

                       

-

                      

- -

Balance as at June 30, 2019 -

                       

-

                       

-

                       

-

                      

- -

Rate of depreciation 0% 5% 10% 20% 10%

Charge for the year -

                       

789,649

              

31,870

                

87,047

               

23,748 932,314

Impairment for the year -

                       

-

                       

924,237

              

1,218,657 688,701 2,831,595

Depreciation on transfer to investment
  property

- (789,649) - - - (789,649)

Balance as at June 30, 2020 - - 956,107 1,305,704 712,449 2,974,260

Rate of depreciation 0% 5% 10% 20% 10%

Written down value as at June 30, 2019 - - - - - -

Written down value as at June 30, 2020 - - - - - -

6.1 Depreciation charge on operating fixed assets has been allocated to administrative expenses.

6.2 During the year, the Company has provided impairment against furniture and fittings, office equipment and computers owing to obsolescence of
the items.

Owned assets

Total

(Rupees)



64 | Dar es Salaam Textile Mills Limited

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Land 7.1 131,397,000 -  
Building 7.2 190,734,000 -  

322,131,000 -  
7.1 Land

Opening balance - - 
Transfer from owners' property and equipment 126,648,000 -  
Revaluation surplus 4,749,000 - 
Fair value adjustments - - 
Closing balance 131,397,000 - 

7.2 Building

Opening balance - - 
Transfer from property and equipment 188,726,051 - 
Revaluation surplus 1,914,300 - 
Fair value adjustments 93,649 -  
Closing balance 190,734,000 - 

7.3 During the year, this property was reclassified from owner's occupied property to 
investment property as a result of change in use.

7.4 These are leased to third parties or held for appreciation in value. Changes in fair values are 
recognised and presented separately as "gain / (loss) from change in fair value of investment 
property" in statement of profit or loss.

7.5 The investment property of the Company has been valued by independent professionally 
qualified valuers as at June 30, 2020. The valuers make reference to market evidence of 
transaction prices for similar properties for land and depreciated replacement cost method 
is used for valuation of buildings. Fair value hierarchy i.e. Level 1, 2 and 3 are assigned based 
on degree of observable inputs as disclosed in note 30. As of reporting date; investment 
property is having fair value of Rupees 322,131,000 (2019: Rupees Nil) and forced sale vale of 
Rupees 254,130,000 (2019: Rupees Nil).

8 LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Long term deposits 1,426,354 1,426,354

2020 2019
Rupees

Note

2020 2019
Rupees
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This deposit has been given against utility companies. These are classified as 'amortised cost' 
under the requirement of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement'. 
However, these, being held for an indefinite period with no fixed maturity date, are carried at 
cost as their amortized cost is impracticable to determine.

9 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Unsecured and Considered good:

Advances to employees against salary 592,579 503,079
Deposits with bank against settlement 135,791 135,791
Margin against bank guarantee 597,600 597,600
Balance carried forward 1,325,970 1,236,470

Balance brought forward 1,325,970 1,236,470

Considered doubtful:

Advances to suppliers 411,419 878,649
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (411,419) - 

- 878,649

Receivable against operating lease - 32,934,855
Allowance for expected credit losses 9.1 - (32,934,855)

- - 

1,325,970 2,115,119

9.1 Impairment allowance

Opening balance 32,934,855 - 
Effect of change in accounting policy - 32,934,855
Written off during the year (32,934,855) - 
Closing balance - 32,934,855

10 TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT

Sales tax refundable 4,056,968 4,056,968

2020 2019
Rupees

Note
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11 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 55 8
Cash at bank - current accounts 295,756 283,377

295,806 283,435

12 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Freehold land - 125,381,520
Building on freehold land -   227,633,395
Other fixed assets 15,196,500 17,698,381

15,196,500 370,713,296

12.1 Opening carrying value 370,713,296 371,017,100
Transfer to property and equipment (319,137,960) - 
Effect for reclassification of non-current assets held for sale (34,918,787) -  
Impairment loss (1,460,049) -  
Disposal during the year -   (303,804)
Closing carrying value 15,196,500 370,713,296

12.2 In accordance with the approval of the shareholders in its meeting held on April 20, 2020; the 
Company has decided to let out the property comprising land and building in accordance 
with the provision of Section 183 of the Companies Act, 2017. Accordingly, all assets held for 
sale has been reclassified in accordance with the guidelines of IFRS 5 to Property, Pant and 
Equipment and further classification to investment property in accordance with 
International Accounting Standard 40, Investment Property except for generators which has 
been kept as non-current assets held for sale.

13 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors 100,042,561 103,284,224
Accrued liabilities 20,356,805 20,375,811
Advance against sale of machinery 4,560,000 -  
Advance against lease of property 1,550,000 -  
Workers welfare fund 70,720 -  
Withholding tax payable 259,984 247,683
Others 8,523,534 10,082,469

135,363,604 133,990,187

2020 2019
Rupees

Note

2020 2019
Rupees

Note
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14 ACCRUED MARKUP

Short term borrowings 54,127,329 54,127,329
Long term financing 54,301,998 54,301,998

108,429,327 108,429,327

15 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies - secured:

Short term borrowings 15.1 116,220,088 116,220,088

15.1 These facilities were obtained from various banking companies for working capital 
requirements and are secured through charge on all present and future movable fixed assets 
amounting to Rupees 135 million, hypothecation charge on machinery amounting to Rupees 
200 million, first joint pari passu charge over current assets of the Company, pledge of stocks 
and personal guarantees of sponsors / directors of the Company at reporting date. Balance 
of stock in trade, machinery and other movable fixed assets does not support these pledge / 
charge amounts. These facilities carry mark up of one to six months KIBOR plus a spread of 
1.75 percent to 3.50 percent per annum (2019: one to six months KIBOR plus a spread of 1.75 
to 3.50 percent per annum), payable quarterly.

16 LONG TERM FINANCING

From banking companies - secured:

- The Bank of Punjab 16.1 12,412,177 12,412,177
- United Bank Limited 16.2 14,959,062 14,959,062
- United Bank Limited 16.3 20,000,000 20,000,000
- United Bank Limited (Forced Demand Finance) 16.4 10,000,000 10,000,000
- National Bank of Pakistan 16.5 78,749,958 78,749,958
- National Bank of Pakistan (CF swap) 16.6 15,976,000 15,976,000
- National Bank of Pakistan (Frozen mark-up) 16.7 4,548,000 4,548,000

156,645,197 156,645,197

Current portion taken as current liability (156,645,197) (156,645,197)
- -   

16.1 This represents demand finance facility having credit limit of Rupees 12.412 million (2019: 

2020 2019
Rupees

Note

2020 2019
Rupees

Note
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Rupees 12.412 million) availed from the Bank of Punjab for swapping of demand finance 
facilities from United Bank Limited. The facility is secured through charge amounting to 
Rupees 103.160 million via Supplemental Memorandum Confirming Constructive Deposit of 
Title Deeds and Supplemental Deed of Mortgage Charge over Fixed Assets. It carries mark up 
at the rate of average 6 month KIBOR plus 350 basis points with floor instalment of Rupees 3 
million each. As the Company has not complied with covenants of restructuring agreement; 
therefore, total outstanding amount has been classified as current portion as amounts are 
overdue as of reporting date.

16.2 This represents demand finance facility having credit limit of Rupees 14.959 million (2019: 
Rupees 14.959 million) availed from United Bank Limited for restructuring financial 
requirements. As per scheduled terms, it carries mark up at the rate of 6 month KIBOR plus 
200 basis points with no floor and cap. The loan was repayable from June 18, 2012 in 15 equal 
quarterly instalments of Rupees 1.868 million each. As the Company has not complied with 
covenants of restructuring agreement; therefore, total outstanding amount has been 
classified as current portion as amounts are overdue as of reporting date. This facility is also 
secured against collateral as given in note 15.1.

16.3 This represents demand finance facility having credit limit of Rupees 20 million (2019: 
Rupees 20 million) converted from  FE-25 / NICF Pledge for restructuring of financial 
requirements by United Bank Limited on June 3, 2013. It carries mark up rate of 3 months 
KIBOR plus 150 basis points. The loan is repayable in equal quarterly instalments coinciding 
with existing NIDF-V loan. As the Company has not complied with covenants of restructuring 
agreement; therefore, total outstanding amount has been classified as current portion as 
amounts are overdue as of reporting date. This facility is also secured against collateral as 
given in note 15.1.

16.4 This represents forced demand finance facility having credit limit of Rupees 10 million (2019: 
Rupees 10 million) against bank guarantee encashment. As the Company has not complied 
with covenants of  agreement; therefore, total outstanding amount has been classified as 
current portion as amounts are overdue as of reporting date. This facility is also secured 
against collateral as given in note 15.1.

16.5 This represents demand finance facility having credit limit of Rupees 78.750 million (2019: 
Rupees 78.750 million) sanctioned by National Bank of Pakistan for reprofiling of company's 
balance sheet / swapping of short term debt of Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited 
and United Bank Limited. It carries mark up rate of 6 month KIBOR plus 150 basis points. The 
loan is repayable in six years including two years of grace period from December 3, 2012 in 8 
equal biannual instalments of 11.25 million each. As the Company has not complied with 
covenants of restructuring agreement; therefore, total outstanding amount has been 
classified as current portion as amounts are overdue as of reporting date.
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16.6 These represent outstanding balances of cash finance pledge facility and outstanding 
markup thereon after restructuring of the said facilities by National Bank of Pakistan as on 
April 8, 2013. The converted cash finance facility carries mark up at the rate of 1 month 
KIBOR plus 200 basis points. The loan was payable in equal quarterly instalments till 
December 31, 2013. As the Company has not complied with covenants of restructuring 
agreement; therefore, total outstanding amount has been classified as current portion as 
amounts are overdue as of reporting date.

16.7 These represent outstanding balances of frozen markup demand finance pledge facility by 
the National Bank of Pakistan as on April 08, 2013 and was secured against pledged cotton 
bales. The loan was payable in equal quarterly instalments till December 31, 2013. As the 
Company has not complied with covenants of restructuring agreement; therefore, total 
outstanding amount has been classified as current portion as amounts are overdue as of 
reporting date.

Facilities mentioned in note 16.5, 16.6 and 16.7 are secured through ranking charge 
amounting to Rupees 120 million on its all present and future fixed assets including but not 
limited to plant, machinery, equipment, fixture, fitting and appurtenance attached thereto 
including without limitation such plant, machinery, equipment, fixture, fitting and 
appurtenance acquired/ to be acquired by the Company.

17 DEFERRED TAXATION

This is composed of:

Taxable / (deductible) temporary differences
Allowance for expected credit loss (119,312) (9,551,108)
Assets held for sale -   69,235,596
Investment Property 52,950,025 -  
Unused tax losses (77,451,316) (75,526,814)
Deferred tax asset (24,620,603) (15,842,326)
Deferred tax asset not recognized 24,620,603 15,842,326

-   -  

Deferred tax asset on tax losses available for carry forward are recognized to the extent that 
the realization of related tax benefits through future taxable interests is probable. 
Accordingly, the Company has not recognized deferred tax assets of Rupees 24.621 million 
(2019: Rupees 15.842 million) in respect of unused tax losses primarily due to unabsorbed 
tax depreciation as sufficient tax interests would not be available to set these off in the 
foreseeable future. As of reporting date; unabsorbed tax depreciation comprises of Rupees 
182.807 million (2019: Rupees 182.807 million).

2020 2019
Rupees
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18 SHARE CAPITAL

18.1 Authorized share capital

15,000,000 (2019: 15,000,000) ordinary shares 
of Rupees 10 each 150,000,000 150,000,000

18.2 Issued subscribed and paid up share capital

8,000,000 (2019: 8,000,000) Ordinary shares of 
Rupees 10 each fully paid in cash 18.2.1 80,000,000 80,000,000

18.2.1 Movement to the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company is as follows:

19 REVALUATION SURPLUS

Opening balance - -  
Revaluation surplus at the date of transfer to 
investment property 6,663,300 -  

6,663,300 -  

Freehold land and building on freehold land were revalued at the date of transfer from 
property and equipment to investment property by approved external, independent 
property valuer, having appropriate professional qualification. Difference between the 
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognized in equity 
as a revaluation surplus for investment property.

20 LOAN FROM SPONSORS

Opening balance 95,522,097 75,882,097
Received during the year 6,077,439 19,640,000
Repaid during the year (730,000) -   
Closing balance 100,869,536 95,522,097

2020 2019
Rupees

Note

2019 2020 2019

8,000,000 Opening balance 80,000,000      80,000,000

- Issued during the year -

                 
-

8,000,000 Closing balance 80,000,000 80,000,000

(Rupees)

8,000,000

2020

(No. of Shares)

8,000,000

-

2020 2019
Rupees
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The loan has been obtained from sponsors of the Company to meet the liquidity 
requirements of the Company, which is unsecured and interest free. There is neither fixed 
tenure of loan nor there is any schedule for repayment of loan. The repayment is at the 
discretion of the Company. In line with Technical Release - 32 (TR 32 - Accounting Directors' 
Loan) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), these loans are 
shown as part of equity.

21 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

21.1 Contingencies

21.1.1 In Tax Year 2005 ending on September 30, 2004 and June 30, 2005 respectively; the 
Department did not give credit of tax deducted on exports under Section 154 amounting to 
Rupees 6,617,590 and Rupees 4,250,270 against minimum tax liability for the tax years 
under reference. The Company filed an appeal against the orders of the Department issued 
under Section 122 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 before CIR(A-1) but rejected the plea 
of the Company. The Company preferred an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland 
Revenue which is pending for adjudication.

21.1.2 The Company filed Income Tax Return for the Tax Year 2009 by declaring taxable loss of 
Rupees 14,534,816 for the year and claimed brought forward losses of Rupees 123,213,497. 
The assessment Order under Section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 was 
finalized by the Department at taxable income of Rupees 137,646,895 and computed tax 
payable of Rupees 47,443,907. The Company preferred an appeal before Commissioner 
Appeals [CIR(A)] whereby CIR concluded the matter by deletion of proration of expenses,  
deletion of loan by Rupees 55,600,000, cash payments by Rupees 100,455,778 and 
understatement of imports by Rupees 11,565,330, School expenses by Rupees 349,422 and 
confirmation of addition of retirement by Rupees 3,166,000 benefits and department being 
aggrieved with the decision of CIR filed an appeal before ATIR which is pending for 
adjudication.

21.1.3 As a result of assessment order under Section 122(5A), the tax liability of Rupees 1,594,999 
was created. The case has been responded by the company at its own. Further, the taxpayer 
filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue and the appeal was decided that the 
tax demand created was adjusted against the Tax Credit under Section 65B amounting to 
Rupees 3,603,276 .Thus the tax demand assessed by the learned DCIR was deleted, but the 
loss was amended as per the additions of learned DCIR on account of Exchange Loss of 
Rupees 1,990,851. 

21.1.4 The Company filed Income Tax Return for the Tax Year 2012 and paid minimum tax at the rate 
of 0.5% on the basis of Sindh High Court Judgment. However, the Department disputed the 
same and charged minimum tax at the 1% resulting in additional minimum tax liability of 
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Rupees 3,527,145. Further, the Department levied penalties under Section 182 (1)(5) of the 
Ordinance amounting to Rupees 176,357 and Rupees 881,786 for non-payment of tax for 
first and second defaults respectively. The Company being aggrieved filed and appeal before 
CIR (A-I) whereby CIR (A-I) directed DCIR to delete the penalties after verification of available 
refunds. No further action is taken by the department so far.

21.1.5 The Company was selected for audit under section 214D of the income tax ordinance, 2001, 
the correspondences on legal ground with the Department are in process.

21.1.6 The SNGPL levied surcharge of Rupees 22.954 million under Gas Infrastructure Development 
Cess on industrial undertakings during FY 2012 to May 2015. Lahore High Court passed an 
order and directed to constitute a High Power Committee of SNGPL to look into the case of 
industrial undertaking. Federal Government challenged the decision of the High Court of 
Sindh, which declared the GIDC as ultra vires and unconstitutional in case of another 
company, and obtained a direction from a Larger Bench of the High Court of Sindh 
suspending the order. In a separate case, Peshawar High Court passed a judgment on May 31, 
2017 validating the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015 and the same has been 
challenged by the petitioners in the Supreme Court of Pakistan.

During the last year, Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015 (Amendment) 
Ordinance, 2019 was promulgated by the Federal Government which provided for 50% 
waiver of outstanding liability as at December 31, 2018. Later, the said Ordinance was 
withdrawn by the Federal Government and pending decision with the Supreme Court of 
Pakistan. Now Subsequent to the reporting date; Supreme Court of Pakistan has announced 
on August 13, 2020 its reserved verdict on the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) 
and has rejected the appeals and ordered the companies to pay the outstanding amount. 
Despite the Supreme Court of Pakistan verdict, specifically the textile industrial units, feel 
grieved and levy of unjustified cess applied contrary to the provisions of the GIDC Act, 2015. 
The Textile companies through APTMA is going to file review petition before the Honorable 
Supreme Court of Pakistan; therefore, the Company has not recognised the amount of 
Rupees 22.954 million in these financial statements as the management of the Company, as 
per advise of the legal counsel of Company, is of the view that decision on review petition 
shall be decided in favour of the Company.  

21.1.7 Faysal Bank Limited filed a suit against the Company and its management for recovery of 
Rupees 22,697,054 before the Banking Courts, Lahore. Said suit was decreed but was 
challenged by the Company on May 16, 2017 before the Division Bench of Lahore High Court, 
Lahore vide RFA No. 107003/2017. Said appeal is still pending for adjudication and the final 
outcome of this matter depends upon the decision of this appeal. The Bank has filed an 
Execution Petition before the Banking Court No. II Lahore which is also pending adjudication. 
The Company is vigilantly pursuing this case.
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21.1.8 National Bank of Pakistan has filed a suit against the Company and its management before 
the Lahore High Court Lahore vide COS No. 167921/2018, wherein the Bank claimed 
recovery of Rupees 100.628 million. The suit is still pending for adjudication. This case is 
being vigorously and diligently contested by the Company and there are good chances of a 
favorable result in this case.

21.1.9 United Bank Limited has filed a suit against the Company and its management before the 
Lahore High Court Lahore vide COS No. 221677/2018, wherein the Bank has claimed for 
recovery of Rupees 183.709 million from the Company. This suit is still pending for 
adjudication. This case is being vigorously and diligently contested by the Company and 
there are good chances of a favorable result in this case.

21.1.10 National Bank of Pakistan has lodged a frivolous and time barred claim of Rupees 51.48 
million based upon the LC's facilities sanctioned about 7/8 years back. National 
Accountability Bureau has also taken up this matter, which act of the NBP and the NAB has 
been challenged in a Writ Petition No. 221742/2018 before the Lahore High Court, Lahore. 
Writ Petition along with other similar matters were allowed by the full Bench of Lahore High 
Court, Lahore on December 24, 2018. The NAB has assailed this judgment in Supreme Court 
of Pakistan vide CPLA No. 1478/2019, which is pending adjudication and there are good 
chances of a favorable result in this case. There is no scope of any fiscal loss to the Company 
in the instant matter.

21.1.11 The Company has filed a suit against National Bank of Pakistan, before the Lahore High Court, 
Lahore vide COS No. 220828/2018, challenging Bank's alleged claim based upon the LC's 
facilities sanctioned about 7/8 years back. The claim of the Bank is baseless and time barred. 
This suit is still pending adjudication. There is no scope of any fiscal loss to the Company in 
the instant matter. This case is being vigorously pursued by the Company.

21.1.12 Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan has initiated show cause proceedings 
against the Company under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 2017. The Company has 
submitted detailed reply to the show cause notice along with revival plan of the Company 
upon disposal of land and building and settlement of loans with lenders and creditors. The 
Company is making all its efforts to revive the Company by implementing revised business 
plan after approval of shareholders. We are hopeful that show cause proceedings shall be 
dropped in near future.

21.2 Commitments

21.2.1 There are expired Letter of guarantees to Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Company Limited 
(SNGPL) amounting to Rupees 20.647 million (2019: Rupees 20.647 million) and Rupees 
0.598 million (2019: Rupees 0.598 million ) from United Bank Limited and Faysal Bank 
Limited respectively for the various amounts expired. These guarantees have not yet been 



74 | Dar es Salaam Textile Mills Limited

returned by the Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Company Limited for onward submissions to the 
banks for cancellation. 

22 OTHER INCOME

Rental income 4,955,000 1,225,500
Income from agricultural produce -   2,005,676
Gain on sale of non-current asset held for sale -   333,882
Credit balances written back 390,000 16,814,510

5,345,000 20,379,568

23 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 6,298,795 5,744,252
Rates and taxes 130,000 127,017
Utilities 1,223,467 1,397,362
Traveling and conveyance 63,500 235,745
Vehicle running and maintenance 719,846 482,260
Printing and stationery 197,446 97,860
Postage, telephone and telegram 100,917 65,151
Legal and professional 575,500 7,900,200
Fee and subscription 218,239 479,583
Registrar services 140,103 139,164
Entertainment 86,640 77,105
Medical expenses 23,460 30,000
Advertisement 132,975 86,670
Depreciation 6.1 932,314 -  
Amortization of intangible assets -   59,341
Auditors' remuneration 23.1 746,000 796,000
Repair and maintenance 304,513 442,559
Others 455,499 110,128

12,349,214 18,270,397
23.1 Auditors' Remuneration

Half yearly review 116,000 100,000
Annual audit fee 630,000 696,000

746,000 796,000

2020 2019
Rupees

Note
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24 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

Loss on sale of store and spares -   1,288,850
Impairment on intangibles -   237,365
Debit balances written off 487,750 5,492,462
Impairment on property and equipment 2,831,595 -  
Impairment on non-current assets held for sale 1,460,049 -  
Provision for doubtful advances 411,419 -  
Workers welfare fund 70,720 
Effect for reclassification of non-current assets held for sale 34,918,787 - 

40,180,320 7,018,677

25 FINANCE COSTS

Bank charges 5,845 24,853

26 TAXATION

Charge for the year:

- Current
For the year 1,045,943 -  
Prior year 1,594,999 -  

2,640,942 -  

- Deferred - - 
2,640,942 - 

26.1 Assessment up to tax year 2019 is finalized (deemed assessment) and the available tax losses 
of the Company are Rupees 267.074 million (2019: Rupees 260.437 million).

26.2 Current year tax is charged on the basis of turnover under Section 113 or Alternate 
Corporate Tax (ACT) on accounting interest under section 113C of Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001, whichever is higher. Relationship between income tax expense and accounting 
interest for current year is not meaningful due to application of ACT.

2020 2019
Rupees

Note



76 | Dar es Salaam Textile Mills Limited

27 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rupees) (49,737,672) (4,934,359)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
 outstanding during the year (Number) 8,000,000 8,000,000

Earnings per share (Rupees) (6.22) (0.62)

27.1 Diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any 
convertible instruments in issue as at reporting date which would have any effect on the 
earnings per share if the option to convert is exercised.

28 CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATION

The aggregate amount charged in the accounts for remuneration, allowances including all 
benefits to the Executive of the Company are as follows:

2020 2019
Description (Rupees)

Managerial remuneration 1,800,000 1,560,000

No. of persons 1 1

28.1 No remuneration was paid to Chief Executive and directors during the year whereas no 
meeting fee was paid to directors for attending board meeting or its committee (2019: Nil).

29 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties comprise of directors of the Company, their close relatives and key 
management personnel. Detail of related parties (with whom the Company has transacted) 
along with relationship and transactions with related parties, other than those which have 
been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

29.1 Name and nature of relationship

Sponsors
Ms. Nilofer Mukhtar - Director / Chairman
Ms. Abida Mukhtar - Director
Mr. Ahmed Mukhtar - Close relative

2020 2019
Rupees

Note
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29.2 Transactions with related parties

30 PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

The Company's provident fund ceased to exist from September 30, 2014 and all outstanding 
dues payable to the employees were paid off. Currently, number of existing employees is less 
than the minimum requirements as per the West Pakistan Industrial and Commercial 
Employment (Standing Orders) Ordinance, 1968.

31 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Judgments and 
estimates are made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are 
recognized and measured at fair value in these financial statements.

IFRS 13, ‘Fair Value Measurements’ requires the Company to classify fair value 
measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in 
making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded 
derivatives, and trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at 
the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the 
Company is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

- The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, 
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the 
use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity - specific estimates. If all 
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable either directly (i.e. as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices), the instrument is included in level 2.

- If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the 
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities.

2020 2019
Nature of Transaction

Sponsors Loan received 6,077,439
       

19,640,000

Sponsors Loan repaid (730,000) -

(Rupees)Nature of Relationship
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As at reporting date, the Company has following item to report in these levels:

31.1 Valuation inputs and relationship to fair value

The following table summarises the quantitative and qualitative information about the 
significant unobservable inputs used in recurring level 3 fair value measurements. Refer fair 
value hierarchy for the valuation techniques adopted.

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

32.1 Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including 
currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's 
Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 
Company’s risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and 
monitoring the Company's risk management policies and provides principles for overall risk 
management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, equity price 
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management 
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize 
potential adverse effects on the financial performance.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Fair value measurements

Assets

-

                
190,734,000

 
131,397,000

    
322,131,000

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Fair value measurements

Assets 

- - - -

June 30, 2020

(Rupees)

June 30, 2019

(Rupees)

Assets at fair value through

statement of profit or loss

Assets at fair value through

statement of profit or loss

Description Significant Unobservable inputs

Buildings -

-

Quantitative data / range and relationship to

the fair value

The market value has been determined by using

a depreciation of approximately 5%-10% on cost

of constructing a similar new building. Higher,

the estimated cost of the construction of new

building, higher the fair value. Further higher the 

depreciation rate, the lower the fair value of the

building.

Suitable depreciation rate to arrive at

depreciated replacement value.

Cost of construction of a new similar

building.
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The company’s audit committee oversees risk management monitors compliance with risk 
management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of risk management 
framework in relation to the risk faced by the company. Audit committee is into oversight 
role by internal audit department. Internal audit department undertakes reviews of risk 
management controls and procedures, results of which are reported to audit committee.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of 
changes in market interest rates or the market price due to change in credit rating of the 
issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and 
demand of securities and liquidity in the market. The Company incurs financial liabilities to 
manage its market risk. All such activities are carried out with the approval of the Board. The 
Company is exposed to interest rate risk, currency risk and market price risk.

(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk 
arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that 
exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.  The Company is not exposed to 
currency risks as at reporting date, therefore, no foreign currency sensitivity is 
applicable.

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that fair values of future cash flows of financial 
instruments which will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. The 
Company has no significant long-term interest-bearing financial assets. The 
Company's interest rate risk arises from financial liabilities. Borrowings obtained at 
floating rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The Company does 
not have financial assets and liabilities whose fair value or future cash flows will 
fluctuate because of changes in interest rate risk.

(iii) Other price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those 
arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by 
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting 
all similar financial instruments traded in the market.
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The Company does not have financial assets and liabilities whose fair value or future 
cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a 
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. To manage credit risk the 
Company maintains procedures covering the application for credit approvals, granting and 
renewal of counterparty limits and monitoring of exposures against these limits. As part of 
these processes the financial viability of all counterparties is regularly monitored and 
assessed.

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily for local deposits, 
other receivables and other financial assets.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Long term deposits 8 1,426,354 1,426,354
Deposits and other receivables 9 733,391 733,391
Bank balances 11 295,756 283,377

2,455,501 2,443,122

Concentration of credit risk

The company identifies concentrations of credit risk by reference to type of counterparty. 
Maximum exposure to credit risk by type of counterparty is as follows:

Long term deposits 8 1,426,354 1,426,354

Out of the total financial assets credit risk is concentrated in long term deposits as they 
constitute 58.09% (2019: 58.38%) of the total financial assets. 

2020 2019
Rupees

Note
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The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to the 
external credit ratings follows:

Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counter parties and 
after giving due consideration to their strong financial standing, management does not 
expect non-performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Company. 
Accordingly the credit risk is minimal.

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations 
associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or any other financial 
assets, or that such obligations will have to be settled in manners unfavorable to the 
company.

The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and 
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the 
Company's reputation. Management believes the liquidity risk to be low.

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping 
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

2020 2019

Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA A-1+ AA+ 270

                 
470

Habib Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA 20,491              20,491

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA+ 5,826               5,941

Meezan Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AA+ 242,347

           
228,935

The Bank of Punjab PACRA A-1+ AA 3,547 4,265

United Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA 23,275 23,275

295,756 283,377

Long termShort term
(Rupees)

Rating 

Agency
Banks
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The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined 
on the basis of interest rates effective as at reporting date. The rates of interest have been 
disclosed in respective notes to the financial statements.

32.2 Financial instruments by categories

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in financial statements 
approximate their fair values.

Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost

Assets as per statement of financial position

Long term deposits 8 1,426,354 1,426,354
Deposits and other receivables 9 733,391 733,391
Cash and bank balances 11 295,806 283,435

2,455,551 2,443,180

2020 2019
Rupees

Note

Carrying 

Amount

Contractual 

cash flows

Less than

1 year

Between 1 and 

5 years
Note

June 30, 2020
Trade and other payables 13 128,922,900

 

128,922,900

 

128,922,900

    

-
Unclaimed dividend 1,159,777

     

1,159,777

     

1,159,777

        

-
Accrued markup 14 108,429,327

 

108,429,327

 

108,429,327

    

-
Short term borrowings 15 116,220,088

 
116,220,088

 
116,220,088

 
-

16 1,045,943     1,045,943     1,045,943         -
355,778,035

 
355,778,035

 
355,778,035

    
-

June 30, 2019
Trade and other payables 13 133,742,504

 

133,742,504

 

133,742,504

    

-
Unclaimed dividend 1,159,777

     

1,159,777

     

1,159,777

        

-
Accrued markup 14 108,429,327 108,429,327 108,429,327 -
Short term borrowings 15 116,220,088 116,220,088 116,220,088 -

16 - - - -
359,551,696 359,551,696 359,551,696 -

Current portion of long term

financing

Current portion of long term

financing

 (Rupees) 
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Liabilities as per statement of financial position

Trade and other payables 13 128,922,900 133,742,504
Unclaimed dividend 1,159,777 1,159,777
Accrued markup 14 108,429,327 108,429,327
Short term borrowings 15 116,220,088 116,220,088
Current portion of long term financing 16 1,045,943 -   

355,778,035 359,551,696

32.3 Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern in order to provide return for shareholders and benefits to other 
stakeholders and to maintain healthier capital ratios in order to support its business and 
maximize shareholders value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes 
adjustments to it, in the light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the 
capital structure, the Company may adjust dividend payments to the shareholders, return on 
capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes from the previous period. The 
Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is debt divided by equity plus net debt. 
Owing to negative equity of the Company as of reporting date; presentation of capital 
gearing ratio would not be meaningful for the users of the financial statements.

33 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Subsequent to reporting date; Supreme Court of Pakistan has announced on August 13, 
2020 its reserved verdict on the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) and has 
rejected the appeals and ordered the companies to pay the outstanding amount. 

34 IMPACT OF COVID-19

During the year, Covid-19 impacted the businesses and operations across the globe including 
Pakistan. As the Company’s operations is already closed; therefore, Covid-19 did not impact 
on the financial position of the Company. Consequently, the management of the Company is 
satisfied that there is no further negative impact on the issue of going concern in preparation 
of these financial statements as fully explained in the note 2 to the financial statements. 

2020 2019
Rupees

Note
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34 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total number of employees at year end 16 15

Average number of employees during the year 17 18

35 GENERAL AND CORRESPONDING FIGURES

35.1 Corresponding figures have been reclassified in these financial statements, wherever 
necessary to facilitate the comparison and to conform with changes and presentation in the 
current year. However, no significant reclassifications were made in the financial statements.

35.2 Figures have been rounded off to rupees, unless otherwise stated.

36 DATE OF AUTHORISATION

36.1 These financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue in Board of 
Directors meeting of the Company held on October 01, 2020.

2020 2019
(Numbers)

______________
Nilofar Mukhtar

Director

______________
Abida Mukhtar

Chief Executive Officer

_____________________
Shahid Ameen Chaudhry

Chief Financial OfficerLahore: October 01, 2020



85 | Dar es Salaam Textile Mills Limited

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE LAST 5 YEARS

Rs 1n  000 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Restated Restated Restated

Sales - - - -

Gross Profit (Loss) -

            

(39,647)

      

(51,717) (57,088)

Profit & Loss Before Taxation 47,096

                  

(4,934)

 

(157,240)

    

(80,343)

        

(81,524)

Profit & Loss After Taxation 49,737

                  

(4,934)

 

(73,920)

      

(81,066)

        

(55,785)

Shareholder,s Equity + Revaluation (155,991)

              

(119,690)

 

(101,758)

    

82,293

          

138,860

Fixed Assets (Net) 322,131

                
-

            
-

              
611,547

       
664,779

 Total Assets (15,591)
                 

(118,264)
 

(101,758)
    

669,189
       

746,550

Total Liabilities 518,863                516,444   559,949     593,759       637,593

Current Assets 39,315                  396,764   458,175     55,623          79,671

Current Liabilities 518,863
                

516,444
   

559,949
     

586,895
       

607,689

Profitibility

Gross Profit (Loss) 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Profit & (Loss ) Before Taxation 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Profit & (Loss ) After Tax 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Return to Equity

Return on Equity Before Tax N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Return to Equity after Tax N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Earning Per Share -9.24 -10.13 -6.97

Liquidity / Leverage

Current Ratio (7.58) (76.82) (15.57) (9.48) (13.11)

Braek upValue Per Share (31.88) (14.78) (3.88) 10.29 17.36

Total Liabilities to Equity (3.33) (4.36) (18.03) 7.22 4.59

--

-

-
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FORM 34

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

(Section 227(2)(f))

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

1.1 Name of the Company

2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 30-06-2020

     ------Shareholdings------

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held

140 1 100 6,964

933 101 500 455,088

51 501 1,000 49,197

58 1,001 5,000 146,669

15 5,001 10,000 125,084

4 10,001 15,000 48,700

3 15,001 20,000 57,000

1 20,001 25,000 24,391

3 25,001 30,000 77,500

2 40,001 45,000 87,250

1 75,001 80,000 80,000

1 110,001 115,000 112,291

1 145,001 150,000 150,000

1 165,001 170,000 168,568

1 240,001 245,000 241,750

1 255,001 260,000 259,287

1 300,001 305,000 302,500

1 515,001 520,000 516,750

1 770,001 775,000 775,000

1 820,001 825,000 824,125

1 1,425,001 1,430,000 1,427,697

1 2,060,001 2,065,000 2,064,189

1,222 8,000,000

  DAR-ES-SALAAM TEXTILE MILLS LTD.
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2.3 Categories of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

2.3.1  Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 4,935,761 61.6970

           

         and their spouse and minor children

2.3.2  Associated Companies, -

              

-

                   

         undertakings and related

         parties. (Parent Company)

2.3.3  NIT and ICP 263,487 3.2936

             

2.3.4  Banks Development 649 0.0081

             

         Financial Institutions, Non

         Banking Financial Institutions.

2.3.5  Insurance Companies -

              

-

                   

2.3.6  Modarabas and Mutual -

              

-

                   

      Funds

2.3.7  Shareholders holding 10% 4,627,761 57.8470

         or more

2.3.8  General Public

a. Local 2,752,162 34.4020

b. Foreign 0 -

2.3.9 Others (to be specified)

1- Joint Stock Companies 22,194 0.2774

2- Pension Funds 24,391 0.3049

3- Others 1,356 0.0170
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CATEGORIES OF SHARE HOLDERS
As on June 30, 2020

S. No. NAME HOLDING % AGE

DIRECTORS, CEO THEIR SPOUSES & MINOR CHILDREN

1 MRS. NILOFAR MUKHTAR 44,750 0.5594

MRS. NILOFAR MUKHTAR (CDC) 824,125 10.3016

2 MRS. MEHWESH FAISAL MUKHTAR 302,500 3.7813

3 MR. FAISAL MUKHTAR 241,750 3.0219

MR. FAISAL MUKHTAR (CDC) 1,427,697 17.8462

4 MST. ABIDA MUKHTAR 25,250 0.3156

MST. ABIDA MUKHTAR (CDC) 2,064,189 25.8024

5 MR. EJAZ HUSSAIN 2,500 0.0313

6 MR. MUHAMMAD YOUSUF 500 0.0063

7 CH. MUHAMMAD GUL NAWAZ 2,500 0.0313

4,935,761 61.6970

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 0 0.0000

NIT & ICP

1 INVESTMENT CORP. OF PAKISTAN 4,200 0.0525

2 CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST (CDC) 259,287 3.2411

263,487 3.2936

BANKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCE INSTITUTIONS, NON BANKING 

FINANCE INSTITUTIONS

1 NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN (CDC) 149 0.0019

2 ESCORTS INVESTMENT BANK LIMITED (CDC) 500 0.0063

649 0.0081

MODARABA & MUTUAL FUNDS 0 0.0000

PENSION FUNDS

1 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND (CDC) 24,391 0.3049

24,391 0.3049
JOINT STOCK COMPANIES

1 AMIN TEXTILE MILLS (PVT) LIMITED 9,000 0.1125

2 S.H. BUKHARI (PVT) LIMITED 2,900 0.0363

3 CAPITAL VISION SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. (CDC) 193 0.0024

4 H M INVESTMENTS (PVT) LTD. (CDC) 100 0.0013

5 MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED (CDC) 1 0.0000

6 SAAO CAPITAL (PVT) LIMITED. (CDC) 10,000 0.1250

22,194 0.2774
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Others

1 THE TRUSTEE GHULAMAN-E-ABBAS EDUCATIONAL & MEDICAL TRUST 500 0.0063

2 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMP BENEVOLENT FUND TRUST (CDC) 856 0.0107

1,356 0.0170

EXECUTIVES 0 0.0000

SHARES HELD BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN) 0 0.0000

SHARES HELD BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL) 2,752,162 34.4020

2,752,162 34.4020

8,000,000 100.0000

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 10% OR MORE OF TOTAL CAPITAL

S. No. NAME Holding %Age

1 MR. FAISAL MUKHTAR 1,669,447 20.8681

2 MRS. ABIDA MUKHTAR 2,089,439 26.1180

3 MISS NELOFAR MUKHTAR 868,875 10.8609

4,627,761 57.8470

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE OF TOTAL CAPITAL

Holding %Age

1 MR. FAISAL MUKHTAR 1,669,447 20.8681

2 MRS. ABIDA MUKHTAR 2,089,439 26.1180

3 MISS NELOFAR MUKHTAR 868,875 10.8609

4 MR. TAHIR MUZAFFAR RAJA (CDC) 775,000 9.6875

5 CH. AHMED MUKHTAR (PHY + CDC) 685,318 8.5665

6,088,079 76.1010

During the financial year the trading in shares of the company by the Directors, CEO, CFO, 

Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children is as follows

Sr. No. Name Sale Purchase

1 MR. FAISAL MUKHTAR (CDC) 7,000

2 MST. ABIDA MUKHTAR (CDC) 762,229

Dear Sir, please check the sale/purchase at your end
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Categories of Shareholding required under
Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)

As on June 30, 2020

Sr. No. Name
No. of 

Shares 
Percentage

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail): - -

Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail)

-

 

-

              

-

Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):  

1 MRS. NILOFAR MUKHTAR 868,875

     

10.8609

2 MRS. MEHWESH FAISAL MUKHTAR 302,500

     

3.7813

3 MR. FAISAL MUKHTAR 1,669,447

  
20.8681

4 MST. ABIDA MUKHTAR 2,089,439
  

26.1180

5 MR. EJAZ HUSSAIN 2,500          0.0313

6 MR. MUHAMMAD YOUSUF 500              0.0063

7 CH. MUHAMMAD GUL NAWAZ 2,500
          

0.0313

Executives: -

              

-

Public Sector Companies & Corporations: -

              

-

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 25,040

        

0.3130

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

1 MR. FAISAL MUKHTAR 1,669,447

  

20.8681

2 MRS. ABIDA MUKHTAR 2,089,439

  

26.1180

3 MISS NELOFAR MUKHTAR 868,875

     

10.8609

4 MR. TAHIR MUZAFFAR RAJA (CDC) 775,000

     

9.6875

5 CH. AHMED MUKHTAR (PHY + CDC) 685,318 8.5665

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their

spouses and minor children shall also be disclosed:

S.No NAME SALE PURCHASE

1 MR. FAISAL MUKHTAR (CDC) - 7,000

2 MST. ABIDA MUKHTAR (CDC) - 762,229
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FORM OF PROXY
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company Secretary
Dar Es Salaam Textile Mills Limited 
54-C III, Gulberg III, Lahore.

L/F NO.

NO. OF SHARES

Dear Sir,

I/We

of 

being a member of DAR ES SALAAM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED, hereby appoint

(NAME)

of 

(another member of the Company) to attend, act and vote for me/us and on my/our

behalf at the Annual Ordinary General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday

October 28, 2019 at 11:00 A.M. at the 54-C III, Gulberg III, Lahore.

and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my hand this day of 2019.

(Signature should agree with the specimen
Signature registered with the Company)

Signature on Revenue
Stamp

Date:

Note: Proxies must be received at the Registered office of the Company mot later
than 48 hours before time of holding the meeting duly stamped, Signed and
witnessed.
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DAR  ES  SALAAM
TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
HEAD OFFICE:
54 C III, Gulberg III, Lahore.
Phone: (042) 35878643-44,  Fax: (042) 35878642
Factory: 10th Km Muridke-Sheikhupura Road, Muridke.
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